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Our Remote/Rural/ 
Regional strategic model 
has been important for the 
RFDS as an organisation in 
2011/12. It is a model that 
will inform and strengthen 
our future health service 
provision across Australia.provision across Australia.provision across Australia.



The Year’s 
Highlights

Over 
270,000 
patient contacts

1 patient  
contact 
every  
two 
minutes

Fixed US dollar rate 
achieved for aircraft 
purchase
Carbon Tax Subsidy achieved

Three R’s 
strategic model  
developed
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$1m
online 
donations
received

The upgraded 
RFDS website 
has increased rural 
and remote access to 
health information

88,530 
telehealth  
contacts made 
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We acknowledge and thank the Commonwealth 
government and State and Territory governments, 
our donors, corporate partners, sponsors, friends 
and volunteers for their continued support 
enabling us to deliver a range of high quality 
services across Australia.  
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State and Territory governments 47% 

Other (e.g. Private Contracts) 11%

Fundraising 17%

Australian Government 25%

For the year ended 30 June 2012 Daily Average Year

Patient Contacts 750 273,731 (1)

Patient Transports 112 40,705 (2)

Health Care Clinics 39 14,412

Distance Flown (kms) 72,870 26,597,696

Number of Landings 203 74,148

Telehealth 243 88,530

Number of Aircraft 61 (3)

RFDS Bases 21 (4)

RFDS Health Facilities 5 (5)

RFDS Other Facilities 10 (6)

Staff Numbers 1,150 (7)

Staff FTE (Full Time Equivalent) 916 (8)

(1) Includes patients at clinics, patients transported, and telehealth

(2)  Includes primary evacuations, interhospital transfers, patients transported from a clinic, repatriations,  

and road transports under the RFDS Victoria Mobile Patient Care Service

(3) Does not include aircraft which will be decommissioned in 2012-13

(4) RFDS Base is a health facility that houses an aircraft and provides health services

(5) RFDS Health Facility is a health facility that does not have an aircraft but provides health services

(6) RFDS Other Facilities include marketing, fundraising and public relations as well as the National Office

(7) Includes 429 part-time and casual staff 

(8) Includes full-time, part-time, fixed-term contract and casual employees

Facts at a Glance

Service area covered...

7,150,000km2

Where our funding comes from

Source: RFDS internal data
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In my fourth and 
final year as National 
Chairman I wish to 
extend my thanks to 
the National Board, 
Greg Rochford, 
National CEO and 
the National Office 
team for their hard 
work and assistance 
 in supporting me 
as Chairman.

This appointment, in which it has been  
a privilege to serve, completes 16 years 
of stimulating involvement at section  
and national levels.

In the past four years we have undertaken 
numerous key developments, some of 
which includes: 

•		The	promulgation	of	a	National	Strategic	
Plan and further refinement of it,

•		The	completion	of	the	Business	Plan,

•		Victorian	Section	now	assuming	a	fully	
operational role,

•		The	recruiting	of	a	National	CEO	with	
extensive health experience,

•		The	negotiation	and	introduction	of	a	
significant health reform agenda,

•		The	boosting	of	National	Office	resources	
to extend health policy development 
and improve national Finance and ICT 
capacities, and

•		The	implementation	of	a	good	marketing	
and fundraising strategy.

For the future, RFDS has a number of 
challenges to confront, including a tight 
fiscal climate impacting on some of our 
traditional services. We remain fortunate 
in being supported with funding from 
Commonwealth, State and Territory 
Governments but will need to continue 
sustained advocacy with relevant 
bureaucracies, Members of Parliament, as 
well as with corporate and private donors 
to meet the increasing health needs of rural 
and regional Australians.

This increase in demand for our services 
will continue because of greater agricultural 
and mining activity in our remote areas. 

The year ending June 2012 has been 
a busy one. We have flown some 26.5 
million kms, run 14,412 healthcare clinics, 
conducted 40,705 patient transports and 
had 273,731 patient contacts. These are 
achievements of which everyone in the 
Flying Doctor can be justifiably proud.

Through our substantial strategic planning 
work, RFDS is now developing a sound 
health policy framework to better suit the 
needs of the diverse communities we 
serve. It is particularly pleasing to note the 
increasing emphasis on dental health.

I would think that dealing with the impact 
of Type 2 Diabetes and mental health 
issues will become an increasing priority 
for all health service providers to Outback 
Australia. RFDS retains its reputation as 
a truly iconic organisation. However it 
will not always be able to depend on its 
longstanding reputation to compete in 
a tougher philanthropic and budgetary 
climate. Innovation, bench marked 
performance, teamwork and carefully 
thought through partnerships will be the 
way of the future. 

In my extensive travels throughout Australia 
and in my contacts with thousands of 
Australians, I never fail to be inspired 
through the deep respect, and indeed 
devotion, of our citizens for the RFDS.

To all of you involved, be you pilot, 
doctor, dentist, nurse, aircraft maintainer, 
office worker, board member or fundraiser, 
my sincere and deep appreciation. 
John Flynn would be very proud of you all.

Major General Michael Jeffery 

AC AO (Mil) MC CVO (Retd)

National Chairman

Chairman’s 
Report
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Innovation, bench marked 
performance, teamwork 

and carefully thought 
through partnerships will 

be the way of the future
through partnerships will 

be the way of the future
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The highlight for 
the RFDS in 2011/12 
was the approval 
of a comprehensive 
Strategic Plan, 
with clearly defined 
priorities, for 
RFDS nationally. 
The focus for this 
reporting year has 
been turning the 
aspirations of that 
Plan into actions.

We started by completing an audit 
of the resources required for the more 
strategic and policy role envisaged for 
the National Office in support of RFDS 
operations. As a result, our health 
policy, finance and ICT resources 
have been boosted. The changes 
were managed most professionally 
by everyone involved. 

Health policy work has focused on 
improving our understanding of the health 
needs of the communities we serve and in 
clarifying the role played by RFDS across 
remote, rural and regional Australia as 
outlined later in this Annual Report.  This 
analysis will also be important in guiding 
how we engage effectively with the new 
Medicare Locals and other entities evolving 
from government health reforms and how 
we can best compliment and support the 
work of other health providers. This has 
included confirmation of National Board 
commitment to a strategy for reconciliation. 

Corporate systems are also being 
developed including our financial platform, 
data reporting and analysis tools and 
communications through extension of 
our video conference systems. These are 
important capabilities for an organisation 
like RFDS with our staff spread over vast 
distances and the majority of whom are 
involved in operations and service delivery. 

These systems are supporting financial 
experts across RFDS in establishing a 
model to standardise costing and analysis 
of the diverse array of services we provide.  
Already this model is being used to guide 
distribution of funding within RFDS and we 
intend to develop it further as an activity 
based funding tool that will increase 
transparency and collaboration with our 
government funders. 

I would like to thank the Commonwealth 
Department of Health and Aging personnel 
for their support during the year, particularly 
in the progress towards securing a more 
certain and sustainable funding approach 
for our operations.  

During a time of reform and fiscal 
constraint there is always a risk that 
policy and program changes focus on 
mainstream populations and providers. 
Counter to this it was particularly helpful 
that Prime Minister Gillard recognised the 
potential impact on RFDS operations 
early in the implementation of new carbon 
pricing arrangements and the resultant 
rebate scheme was introduced smoothly 
ensuring that there were no adverse 
impacts on the RFDS. 

The visit by Minister for Health Tanya 
Plibersek to our Cairns Base and a 
number of Cape York communities was 
also much appreciated as it demonstrated 
commitment to addressing the health 
needs of remote Indigenous people. 
Similarly current Government proposals 
for dental funding reform have potential 
to support much needed improvements in 
the availability of oral health care to remote 
and rural communities. The RFDS, along 
with many other rural and remote health 
providers, support the recognition of the 
special needs and logistical difficulties of 
treating these populations.

In my first full year as National CEO I would 
like to thank the Sectional CEOs and National 
Office team for their work in progressing 
the national strategic direction. I would 
also like to thank the RFDS National Board 
members, in particular our outgoing national 
Chairman General Jeffery, for their support, 
clear direction and leadership provided 
throughout the year.

Finally, I would like to thank Kerrie Smith 
and Tracy Kinchington for their 
administrative support during the year.

Greg Rochford 
Chief Executive Officer – 
RFDS National Office

CEO’s Report
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Health policy work has 
focused on improving our 

understanding of the health 
needs of the communities 
we serve and in clarifying 

the role played by RFDS 
across remote, rural and 

regional Australia
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National 
Board 

Our five existing board members of Major General Michael Jeffery, 
Neville Bassett, David Hills, Michael Hackman and Mark Gray  
has been complimented in 2011/12 with the three new faces  
of Murray Rogers, John Milhinch and Mick Reid.

Major General Michael Jeffery  
AC, AO (Mil), CVO, MC (Retd)

Chairman  
(Former Governor-General)
Resides in Australian Capital Territory 
Appointed 14 November 2008 

Mr Michael Alexander Hackman
Director – RFDS Tasmanian Section
Resides in Sydney, New South Wales 
Appointed 19 November 2010

Mr John Milhinch 
Director – RFDS South Eastern Section
Resides in Pyrmont, New South Wales 
Appointed 19 November 2011 

Mr Neville Bassett
Director – RFDS Western Operations
Resides in Maida Vale, Western Australia 
Appointed 30 June 2006

Mr Mark Gray 
Director – RFDS Queensland Section
Resides in McDowell, Queensland 
Appointed 13 November 2009 

Mr Mick Reid 
Independent
Resides in Moss Vale, New South Wales 
Appointed 25 November 2011

Mr David Hills
Director – RFDS Central Operations
Resides Mount Pleasant, South Australia 
Appointed 24 November 2006

Mr Murray Rogers 
Director – RFDS Victorian Section
Resides in Brighton, Victoria 
Appointed 19 November 2011 

Pictured (left to right): 
Michael Hackman, David Hills, John Milhinch, Murray Rogers, Major General Michael Jeffery AC AO (Mil) CVO MC (Retd), Mark Gray, Neville Bassett, Mick Reid 
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Developing a 
sound policy 
framework

The three R’s strategic model 
will help RFDS work more 
effectively with other providers 
and to deliver on our promise  
of providing the finest care to 
the furthest corner.
of providing the finest care to 

Remote
Rural
Regional
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Organisational Development

A year of change for the RFDS delivers  
a refined focus and operating strategy

Exactly what it is that the RFDS does 
and where we operate would seem a 
fairly obvious, even simple, question to 
answer. It was this question, however, 
that provided the starting point for a 
focused analysis of our operations 
across Australia and this revealed a 
more complex picture. Over the last 
12 months we have commenced the 
process of refining and focusing our 
strategic objectives.

The analysis process

We began our analysis by cataloguing 
the different health services the RFDS 
provides. These were then mapped against 
the Commonwealth Government’s official 
geographic classification – the Australian 
Standard Geographical Classification  
– Remoteness Area (ASGC-RA) system.  
From this assessment we found the 
expected concentration of health services 
in Remote and Very Remote parts of 
Australia, our traditional constituency. 
The analysis revealed that the RFDS 
also provides substantial health services 
to ASGC-RA Inner Regional and Outer 
Regional areas of Australia. 

On application of the ASGC-RA 
classifications, however, we learnt that 
it was a somewhat impractical system 
for describing the RFDS’s unique 
service footprint. This in turn led to the 
development of a more straightforward 
classification system to better describe  
our work – “Remote, Rural and Regional” 
health services.

Remote

The assessment of our service provision 
in remote Australia revealed that the 
RFDS is often the sole provider of health 
services. Alternately, we work closely with 
a small number of health care providers 
such as government run or Aboriginal 
and Torres Strait Islander health services. 
The services we deliver in this challenging 
environment span the health care spectrum 
from preventative to emergency care. We 
provide comprehensive primary health 
care services which include responding to 
emergencies and the medical evacuation 
of patients to regional and city hospitals 
as well as general practice and nursing 
services, backed up with telephone support 
and medical chest access. In some remote 
areas, we are able to extend these core 
services by providing mental health, oral 
health and health promotion services. We 
also support other health providers by 
helping with the transport of allied health 
and medical specialist services where 
needed. Our contribution to remote health 
care is essential.

Rural

In rural Australia we work alongside a  
much greater array of services providing 
inter-hospital transports and emergency 
evacuations, transporting allied health and 
medical specialists and increasingly filling 
health service gaps wherever we can. A 
particular example of this is the shortage of  
female GPs in rural Australia. As manager 
of the Rural Women’s General Practitioner 
Service across the country, the RFDS 
provides the opportunity for gender choice 
for rural, and some remote, residents. 
Mental health and oral health are other 
valuable key priority services that the RFDS 
provides access to in a number of rural areas.

While arrangements differ across Australia, 
rurally we provide the majority of inter-
hospital patient transfers, moving patients 
requiring more specialist in-patient care 
to larger hospitals. These inter-hospital 
transport services help RFDS maintain a 
critical mass of aviation infrastructure which 
in turn, supports the reliability of services 
to more remote places. A major focus of 
the RFDS in rural Australia is in filling the 
gaps in access to medical and health care 
in underserviced areas characterised by 
high need. Working in close collaboration 
with other providers, our aim is to maximise 
service delivery and avoid duplication.

Regional

Most health services in the “Regional” 
sector are delivered by public and private 
providers. The focus of the RFDS within  
this region is our inter-hospital transfer 
work. When services are not available 
locally RFDS facilitates access to the 
required specialist hospital care. Many 
severely ill patients present to country 
hospitals requiring transfer to a regional 
or metropolitan centre. At other times we 
transfer patients from a regional centre 
to a city hospital. This aeromedical work, 
funded by the states and territories, is an 
important part of the RFDS role and is 
essential to building a reliable and efficient 
scale for operations across Remote, Rural 
and Regional Australia. 

Each of the three geographical areas - 
Remote, Rural and Regional - has unique 
characteristics. From the health services 
landscape and jurisdictional governance, 
to their political significance and health 
funding arrangements, the breadth and 
depth of the needs we meet, and the 
services we provide, means a single RFDS 
health policy approach needs to adapt to 
local circumstances, and not present as a 
“one size fits all” solution.

A more tailored approach geared toward 
remote, rural and regional health services 
will help RFDS work more effectively 
with other providers and to deliver on our 
promise of providing the finest care to the 
furthest corner. 

By better knowing what it is that we do 
and where we operate, our proposed 3R’s 
strategic model will assist us by ensuring 
that we can efficiently, and effectively, 
deliver the right services to the right people 
in the right areas.
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Three R’s  
Strategic Model

RFDS Service 
Footprint

•  Inter-Hospital 
Patient  
Transport  
“ safe, reliable, 
value for money” 

•  Priority Primary 
Health Care 
“filling the gaps”

•  Health Provider 
Transport “support 
for other providers”

•  Inter-Hospital 
Patient Transport  
“ safe, reliable,  
value for money”

•  Comprehensive 
Primary Health Care 
(inc. emergency  
response & 
evacuations) 
“ remote health care  
to remote Australia 

•  Health Provider 
Transport “support 
for other remote 
providers” 

Regional Rural Remote

Note: this map does not show all RFDS services
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Health 

A healthy boost to the National 
Office team focuses on 
development and support.

An increased understanding of our 
health services.

For the National Office, 2011/12 brought 
a much-needed boost to our health 
resources. In addition to last year’s 
recruitment of experienced health executive 
Greg Rochford as National CEO, public 
health physician Dr Hugh Burke came on 
board as a part time appointment to join 
forces with Robert Williams, National Health 
Program Manager and the Section General 
Managers of Health Services. 

A larger strategic grouping has resulted 
in an enhanced area-specific knowledge 
base, affording the organisation the 
capability to apply greater focus to health 
service policy development, and support 
for Section service delivery. 

In any given year the RFDS fulfils a  
number of key roles in health care provision 
including; delivering comprehensive primary 
health care services to remote Australia; 
meeting priority primary health care service 
needs in rural Australia; providing inter-
hospital transfers rurally and regionally; 
and facilitating health provider transport 
services to remote and rural Australia. 

The ‘who, what and where’ of 
our remote service provision

In 2011 /12, to commence our health  
policy development process, National 
Office produced a key report focused 
on the delivery of services to remote 
Australia so as to better understand the 
demographics and health needs of our 
remote area constituency.

The ‘Where’

We reviewed and geographically delineated 
the RFDS’s Australian-wide footprint for its 
“traditional” primary care services under the 
remit of the Commonwealth’s Traditional 
Service Contract, and described the 
population health profile for this catchment. 
Towns with a resident medical practitioner 
were excluded from the RFDS footprint 
population.

Our findings were that the RFDS services 
to the region include primary evacuations, 
general practitioner and nurse clinics, tele-
health consultations and medical chests.

We ascertained that the RFDS covers  
about 65% of the Australian land mass.  
Of this, we cover 55% of Queensland,  
20% of NSW, 67% of South Australia,  
65% of Northern Territory and 85% of 
Western Australia. 

Based on the Australian Standard 
Geographical Classification all of our 
traditional service footprint would be 
classified as Remote or Very Remote, 
and mostly Very Remote. Furthermore, 
we discovered that the remote footprint 
services a sparsely dispersed population 
of about 66,500 people or approximately 
0.3% of the national population.

The ‘Who’

Referencing the Socio-Economic Index 
of Relative Advantage/Disadvantage 
(SEIFA) – we discovered that the RFDS 
remote footprint provides to a widely 
variant socio-economic band from one 
Local Government Area to another. 
Notably, the vast majority of people in 
these constituencies would be ranked 
as disadvantaged, with people on low 
personal incomes, limited employment 
opportunities, low educational 
achievements and more low-skilled 
occupations. However, there are pockets  
of advantage linked to mining and 
agricultural industries within the footprint.

The life expectancy of people living in the 
RFDS remote footprint is up to 7 years 
lower compared to that of people living in 
major cities. This is due to the relatively 
large numbers of Indigenous people who 
live in the footprint, in conjunction with 
general conditions underpinned by poorer 
access to services, worse lifestyle risk 
factor profiles and unique environmental 
circumstances. 

Alarmingly, death rates for people living  
in the RFDS remote footprint are up to  
70% higher than those living in the major 
cities and more than half of these  
“excess deaths” are caused by chronic 
illnesses such as heart disease, stroke, 
diabetes, chronic respiratory disease  
and kidney disease. 

In response to these findings, the RFDS 
National Board requested the development 
of an organisational chronic disease 
strategy. This will provide an overarching 
framework of national direction for 
improving chronic disease prevention, early 
detection and good management across 
the sections. This work will be progressed 
over the next 12 months. 

The ‘What’

The National Office also produced 
an important discussion paper that 
systematically describes the actual 
elements of the RFDS comprehensive 
primary health care service to our 
remote locations.

The core characteristics include:

•		the	first	point	of	contact	with	the	health	
system for the majority of the catchment 
population;

•		a	gateway	to	other	parts	of	the	health	
system via referral pathways;

•		the	provision	of	generalist	services	across	
the spectrum of care, with an emphasis 
on episodic care for common time-limited 
health problems, anticipatory preventive 
care, early detection of an intervention for 
risk factors, and the ongoing management 
of chronic conditions;

•		the	comprehensive	provision	of	major	
ambulatory health needs for individuals, 
families and local communities across the 
span of life;

•		an	understanding	and	focus	on	
psychosocial care;

•		continuity	of	care	over	time	and	over	
episodes; and

•		the	use	of	multidisciplinary	approaches.

In some instances the RFDS is the 
sole service provider to a community. 
In other cases the RFDS is one of a few 
service providers in a town. RFDS is well 
positioned to provide services due to 
our distinctive capabilities, specifically, 
due to our hub and spoke service model,  
aeromedical capacity and 24 hour 
doctor access. This being the case, the 
spectrum of services the RFDS delivers 
from one community to the next may vary 
depending on the existing service provider 
environment on the ground. Enabling the 
Sections to assess both local need and 
existing service provision to determine what 
services are best delivered by the RFDS, 
is a major benefit of our comprehensive 
primary health care service model.  
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Oral Health as a priority

In response to the RFDS National Board 
identifying oral health services as a priority 
primary health care issue for remote and 
rural Australia, the National Office produced 
a service development discussion paper 
on the subject. This was timely, given 
the Commonwealth Government’s 
announcement of an oral health package  
in its May federal budget.  

With little in the way of public fanfare,  
the RFDS has been quietly operating a 
number of successful dental programs  
over a number of years, slowly making 
great strides in helping to restore the  
oral health of many isolated communities.

With the RFDS at the frontline of this 
recently prioritised national health focus,  
we find ourselves in a unique position to 
offer the government the opportunity to  
join with us, and others, in the support, 
creation and delivery of a nation-wide oral 
services program to remote communities. 
In 2011/12 we commenced health 
advocacy work with a view to continuing  
in 2012/13 toward our aim of building  
a truly comprehensive national oral  
health program. 

The impact of health reform 

In the 2011/12 year, the RFDS National 
Office continued its health advocacy role  
by meeting with Ministers and their 
advisors, governmental officials and 
senior staff from other national health 
organisations. In this area our efforts 
were directed toward the impact of the 
Commonwealth health reforms in the rural 
and remote context. With the introduction 
of the Australian Government’s new 
Medicare Locals Network the RFDS is 
keen to work with the Australian Medicare 
Local Alliance and the 10 individual 
Medicare Locals, within the RFDS remote 
area footprint to develop and deliver 
health services. This will ensure that 
small populations in remote communities 
receive the adequate attention they need, 
particularly considering the attendant 
logistical and access issues inherent to 
these locations.

Dealing with change and economics

Changes in administrative arrangements 
for some programs, such as the Rural 
Women’s General Practice Service, and 
a general tightening of budgets across 
government have had an impact on 
RFDS services. This has led to the need 
for us to intensify our lobbying for the 
health needs of people living in remote 
Australia. In particular the RFDS has an 
important advocacy role in ensuring that 
the continuity of existing services is not 
negatively impacted by any program 
changes. The challenges that we have 
faced in this area throughout 2011 /12 are 
unlikely to abate in the 2012/13 year and 
we will continue to advocate for the needs 
of remote, rural and regional Australians.

Our health information strategy

In 2011/12 there was a renewed focus 
on the need for reliable health data to 
both describe what we do and inform 
future health service planning. The result 
was the formulation of a 12 month health 
information strategy. The subsequent 
strategy was two-fold; Short term to 
develop and collect a reliable minimum 
health data set from currently available 
data; Long term to formulate a national 
approach to developing the organisational 
infrastructure for the routine capture, 
collection and analysis of a more 
informative future health indicator set.

And in other news…

As well as the above initiatives National 
Office also enacted the following: the 
ongoing contract management of the 
Traditional Services, Rural Women’s 
General Practice Service and Mental 
Health Funding Agreements with the 
Commonwealth Department of Health  
and Ageing; the convening of an expert 
RFDS group to share information, 
strategically plan for aeromedical services 
and to implement national projects such  
as a comprehensive review of the Medical  
Chest program. 

In the year ahead, we look forward to 
continuing the work we have begun in 
2011/12,to further develop the RFDS 
3R’s strategic model, to better understand 
the populations we serve and to formulate 
policy to guide RFDS sections in the 
delivery of high quality health services to 
our remote, rural and regional constituents.

Dr Hugh Burke 
Public Health Physician

Robert Williams 
National Health Program Manager 

Health 

Health advocacy  
and the RFDS

With little in the way of public fanfare,  
the RFDS has been quietly operating  
a number of successful dental programs  
over a number of years, slowly making  
great strides in helping to restore the  
oral health of many isolated communities.oral health of many isolated communities.
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A locked in US dollar  
rate for 4 years on aircraft 
purchase negotiated with 
the NAB is a good financial 
outcome for the RFDS.
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It has been a busy 12 months for Finance 
and Corporate Services, recruiting new 
people to the National Office team and 
building new systems to streamline 
and enhance our future operations. 
Establishing new systems to improve 
performance reporting and provide 
better advice to the Commonwealth 
Government relating to our performance 
are fundamental drivers for this change. 

A new 4 year Funding Agreement

Commencing in July 2011 we entered 
into a new 4 year Funding Agreement for 
Traditional Services. A grant based funding 
arrangement for recurrent and capital 
funding, the new Agreement includes a 
commitment from the RFDS to further 
develop a tool to calculate the cost of 
our service provision to ensure funding 
provided by the Commonwealth 
is adequate. This tool is the Cost Model.

The Cost Model – a new activity based 
costing tool

This year the Cost Model was presented 
to the Australian Government Department 
of Health and Ageing and negotiations 
continue for us to adopt it as our funding 
model. An activity-based costing tool, the 
Cost Model will enable us to calculate the 
true cost of our services linking activity 
levels with resource requirements. The 
ability to identify funding shortfalls and 
accurately calculate the cost of services 
mean the Cost Model will be an essential 
tool for future funding negotiation.

The National Office also worked towards, 
and implemented in July 2012, a new 
accounting system joining the national 
accounting system (Technology One 
Financials) used by all Sections. With 
the Victorian Section joining the project 
the national accounting system will now 
provide a more efficient and effective 
national financial reporting platform.

KPI benchmarking and 
the Business Intelligence System,  
a platform for the future

The Technology One system was leveraged 
further by implementing the Business 
Intelligence module and developing a 
system to publish Key Performance 
Indicators (KPI’s) and assist with the 
management of Commonwealth reporting 
requirements. We have taken the first step 
in developing a national set of KPI’s with 
which to benchmark performance between 
Sections and demonstrate efficiencies 
across the whole of the organisation. 

Using the power of our strong 
economic showing and Australian 
dollar for the greater good 

Aviation scored perhaps the most fiscally 
efficient achievement for the past financial 
year, in the form of the foreign exchange 
contract we entered into with the National 
Australia Bank. As the RFDS purchase 
our aircraft in US dollars the contract was 
entered into to take advantage of the high 
Australian dollar against the US dollar, and 
will provide for new aircraft for the RFDS 
over the next four years at a fixed US dollar 
rate. This amounts to not only significant 
costs savings to the organisation, and the 
Australian Government, it also delivers 
a level of consistency in expenditure 
for a sustained period of time for one of 
our greatest and most essential asset 
expenditures.

Leading the way on 
policy development and cost saving 
in the carbon taxed future

The RFDS National Office demonstrated a 
great achievement in policy development 
and category leadership in 2011/12. In 
the form of our significant contribution 
to the development of the Australian 
Government’s policy to subsidise charities 
for the effects of the proposed new carbon 
pricing increases. Through the Charities 
Maritime and Aviation Support Program, 
Department of Climate Change and Energy 
Efficiency, the RFDS will receive a subsidy 
to offset the effective carbon price increase, 
which will apply to fuels used in domestic 
aviation from July 2012, via the fuel excise 
and fuel tax credits scheme. 

The RFDS was at the forefront of this 
policy creation providing input to the policy 
development and co-ordinating a national 
RFDS response to the new policy. It was 
with great pride that the RFDS led these 
successful negotiations for the Sections 
that will avoid significant cost increases in 
the future.

Strengthening our team and 
managing our risk

A revised National Office organisation 
structure undertaken in the second half of 
the year not only ushered in some fresh 
faces to the office environment, but some 
fresh thinking into the mix. Key position 
appointments included the Director 
of Finance & Corporate Services, the 
Accountant and National ICT Manager. 
The new appointments provide the 
National Office with a greater capacity 
to manage the Commonwealth Funding 
arrangements more effectively and improve 
the management of national systems into 
the future.

We also participated in a national risk 
management review undertaken by 
Willis. This was completed during the 
year, providing the National Office and 
Sections with a consistent approach to the 
identifications and management of risk. 
The outcomes of the assessment informed 
the National Board’s Strategic Plan review 
which was undertaken in June 2012.

David Alley 
Director of Finance and Corporate Services

Anthony Alexander 
Finance Manager (till 23 September 2011)

Susan Vuong 
Accountant

Finance & Corporate 

2011/12 - a year of building  
our future systems
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Information, 
Communications  
and Technology

Dedicated 
management and 
systems integration - 
our year in ICT
During the 2011/12 year, ICT was identified as a key strategic 
priority and a full time dedicated ICT Manager was appointed 
in March 2012. Several projects were initiated using a formal 
approach to Project Management including the National 
Office accounting system implementation and a new Business 
Intelligence System.

A future realised - connecting the organisation via 
videoconferencing

Videoconferencing has existed for a number of years and 
individual RFDS Sections have used the technology to support 
the administration and delivery of health services. With a widely 
dispersed workforce across the country and the challenges of 
reaching remote communities it makes sense for RFDS to continue 
to explore how videoconferencing technology can support us in 
our work. During 2011-12 a plan to implement a national video 
conferencing system was developed and presented to the Sections 
for endorsement towards the end of the year. The intention is to 
use the system initially to reduce the administrative cost of national 
meetings. Such a system will also further boost the investments 
already made by Sections towards Telehealth opportunities, with 
the potential to increase and diversify the RFDS health offering into 
remote and very remote Australia.

Other achievements and the year ahead

In June 2012 ICT also completed the upgrade of the CHRIS21 
HR system and carried out a review of the ThankQ Donor 
Management System implementation.

For the year ahead, plans are in place to develop an ICT Strategic 
Plan for the RFDS organisation based around, and supporting, the 
objectives of the National Strategic Plan. 

With our improved capability to undertake ICT initiatives and 
projects, we look forward to settling in to 2012 /13 and bringing 
more innovations to further support and propel the RFDS to 
achieve it’s strategic objectives.

Mike Nay 
National ICT Manager

Our newly developed 
Business Intelligence 
System will make  
our reporting to  
government more 
streamlined.streamlined.streamlined.
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Human 
Resources

A stronger, more 
proficient workforce
The last financial year has been one of consolidation for  
the management of human resources. Section HR managers  
have worked collaboratively to ensure that some of the 
important building blocks of HR practice were in place and 
working well within Sections. Of note is the application of a 
solid performance management discipline and realising the  
benefits of a national workforce reporting capability  
through the Human Resource Information System (HRIS).

Providing an opportunity for Sections to educate, train and 
reinforce the performance management framework process, 
2011/12 allowed for a review and adjustment to some aspects. 
HR managers also signed off a national probationary review 
methodology to support manager assessment of employee 
suitability on completion of their qualifying period.

Updating Chris21 and bringing new employees up to speed

Significant energy has been invested in refining the HRIS system, 
Chris21. Sections have focused on addressing sectional specific 
requirements to ensure the system meets their needs. Importantly 
at a National level there has also been significant consideration 
of workforce reporting which has dovetailed into the Business 
Intelligence project. This will allow for real time reporting of the 
workforce profile and valuable metrics aligned to the various areas 
serviced by the RFDS – Remote, Rural and Regional.

There has been a finalisation of the ‘New Employee Area’ of the 
national website, which provides useful information to all new 
starters and presents a professional interface at the early stages of 
their career with the RFDS. This will form part of sectional Induction 
& Orientation procedures, which should aim to increase the 
productivity levels of new employees as quickly as possible after 
commencing. This sets a base line for commencing the build of a 
formal learning and development path for employees at the RFDS

Reflecting the people we help in our own workforce

The RFDS acknowledges the importance of building sustainable 
and productive relationships with Indigenous communities 
throughout remote, rural and regional parts of Australia. As part of 
this, it is important that our workforce reflects the diversity of the 
communities and patients we serve. To assist in achieving this, a 
process to set an aligned foundation for Indigenous engagement 
has been commenced and will be realised in the coming year.

The Section HR managers continue to work collaboratively and 
leverage the skill sets within the group. Front of mind is how our 
approach to workforce management adds value across the various 
stages of activity required to deliver excellence in healthcare 
services throughout remote, rural and regional Australia.

Kelly Hooper 
Human Resource Consultant

Boosted productivity and faster 
new employees induction and 
integration are just some of 
the improvements to come 
from our work in HR this year.from our work in HR this year.from our work in HR this year.
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As the custodian of the Royal Flying 
Doctor Service brand, the National 
Office provides direction on the usage 
of the RFDS brand across multiple 
touch points. 

Out of that charter our key responsibility 
in Marketing is to work with internal and 
external stakeholders to enhance the 
reputation and visibility of the RFDS brand 
at a public, governmental and philanthropic 
level. It is important within that objective 
to ensure that the RFDS – as both an 
organisation and brand - remains inspiring, 
relevant and trusted. 

We also need to leverage the RFDS brand 
to increase awareness of the health needs 
of the people who live in remote, regional 
and rural communities.  In doing so, it 
is essential that we remain credible and 
authentic in the marketplace to ensure 
years of effort and presence within 
Australia’s remote, rural and regional 
communities are not lost.

A consistent message means that people 
can continue to believe that, as an 
organisation, the RFDS is capable, reliable 
and consistent – just as we’ve always been. 

Engaging with new fundraising 
relationships

For the National Office Marketing 
department the key focus for 2011/12 was 
to develop the National Strategic Marketing 
and Fundraising plan to serve as a 
framework for RFDS Sections and support 
the National RFDS Strategic Plan. The three 
key opportunities identified and addressed 
in the plan are to build RFDS brand 
awareness and develop a relationship with 
people under 40 who live in metropolitan 
areas by utilising digital channels and social 
media networks; educate all stakeholders 
that the RFDS provides primary health 
care services in addition to aeromedical 
emergency services across multiple 
touch points; and build partnerships with 
strategically aligned corporate entities 
and organisations that wish to support the 
RFDS nationwide.

Throughout the year we have worked to 
increase our visibility to raise funds to 
support vital health services for people who 
live in remote, rural and regional Australia. 
We have received some very generous 
support from our partners that has helped 
us achieve great visibility this year.

Let’s go shopping! RFDS lands major  
TV support

One such partner to offer invaluable 
support by selecting the RFDS as their 
chosen charity was the Television Shopping 
Network, TVSN. TVSN reaches over 2 
million homes in Australia through Pay TV 
networks and their website. They gave 
their support to the RFDS in the form of 
exposure of our TV Community Service 
Announcement during prime time. This 
was backed up with our Community 
Service Announcement’s in the Program 
Guide, E-Newsletter and additional on-air 
mentions, providing us with a perfect 
opportunity to engage with a different 
audience and raise awareness of the 
breadth of health services we provide,  
and the needs of people who live in  
remote and rural communities.

Still flying with our national carrier

The 2011/12 year saw the commencement 
of the third year of our partnership with 
The Qantas Foundation. Building on a 
successful second year, QANTAS continued 
support of two health programs; the launch 
of a series of Health Field Promotion Days 
from our Mt Isa base in Queensland and an 
additional five day Fly Around Clinic from 
our Broken Hill base in NSW. 

Both of these initiatives were aimed at 
health promotion and prevention with, 
RFDS multidisciplinary teams visiting 
pastoral properties and far reaching areas 
where the local doctor is often more than 
400km away. An amazing gift from The 
Qantas Foundation, their ongoing support 
is invaluable and undeniable. 

For one great Australian icon to help another 
great Australian icon deliver essential 
health care to regions only aircraft can 
access speaks volumes for the power of 
technology to provide and advance the 
living conditions of people no matter how 
vast the space is between them and us  
– physically, socially and emotionally. It 
goes without saying that we are looking 
forward to a further and continued 
development of the partnership. 

We also received incredibly generous 
support from The Australian and various 
television networks that run our print and 
television campaign free of charge when 
space is available, something for which  
we are entirely grateful.

Going digital – worth a million 

An important tool for engaging with our 
stakeholders is the RFDS website. The 
new look site was relaunched in April with 
an increased focus on health. There is 
now a dedicated Your Health area within 
the website which provides patients 
with access to a health service directory 
allowing for quick location of their nearest 
clinic. Health Information and Fact Sheets, 
made possible thanks to a strategic 
partnership with the Better Health Channel, 
are also accessible.

Health Professionals are now quickly able 
to access information relevant to them in 
a specific section of the website. This area 
houses a clinical resources repository as 
well as ‘How To’ and training video content. 

Traffic to our site continues to increase 
significantly with 400,000 people visiting 
us in the past year and we are excited to 
announce that we have received one million 
dollars in donations and merchandise 
through the site.

The focus for the next 12 months is 
to implement the key initiatives from 
the National Strategic Marketing and 
Fundraising plan and to support the RFDS 
Sections in commemorating the 85th 
Anniversary of the inaugural flight of the 
Royal Flying Doctor Service.

Janice Hoogeveen 
National Marketing Director

Beck Tully 
National Web Manager

Marketing 

The power of the RFDS brand 
continues to fly in 2011/12

The new look RFDS 
website launched in  
April – you could say it 
looks a million dollars, 
considering that $1m 
dollars worth of online 
donations have been 
received through it!
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RFDS was at the 
forefront in the policy 
development that 
resulted in the creation 
of the Charity Carbon 
Tax Subsidy, of which 
we will be an 
appreciative recipient.
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Directors’ Report

The directors of the Royal Flying Doctor Service of Australia submit 
herewith the annual financial report of the company for the financial 
year ended 30 June 2012. In order to comply with the provisions of the 
Corporations Act 2001, the directors report as follows: 

Information about the directors and senior management 

The names and particulars of the directors of the company during or since the end of the financial year are:

Name Particulars 

>  Major General Michael Jeffery AC, AO(Mil), CVO, MC (Retd) Chairman (Former Governor-General)
Resides in the ACT Appointed 14 November 2008

>  Mr Neville Bassett Director, RFDS Western Operations
Resides in Maida Vale, Western Australia Appointed 30 June 2006

>  Mr David Hills Director, RFDS Central Operations
Resides Mount Pleasant, South Australia Appointed 24 November 2006

>  Ms Joan Treweeke Director, RFDS South Eastern Section
Resides in Southbank, Victoria Appointed 14 November 2008  

Resigned 19 November 2010

>  Mr Mark Gray Director, RFDS Queensland Section
Resides in McDowall, Queensland Appointed 13 November 2009

>  Mr Michael Hackman Vice President, RFDS Tasmanian Section
Resides in Sydney, New South Wales Appointed 19 November 2010

>  Mr Peter Kronborg Director, RFDS Victorian Section
Resides in Richmond, Victoria Appointed 19 November 2010  

Resigned 25 November 2011

>  Mr Murray Rogers AM Director, RFDS Victorian Section
Resides in Brighton, Victoria Appointed 25 November 2011

>  Mr John Milhinch OAM Director, RFDS South Eastern Section
Resides in Pyrmont, New South Wales Appointed 25 November 2011

>  Mr Michael Reid Independent Director, RFDS of Australia
Resides in Moss Vale, New South Wales Appointed 28 February 2012

The above named directors held office during the whole of the financial year and since the end of the financial year except where stated.

Joint Company Secretaries 

>  Mr Greg Rochford National Chief Executive (Appointed 14 March 2011)

>  Mr David Alley National Director of Finance and Corporate Services  
(Appointed 25 November 2011)

>  Mr Anthony Alexander National Finance Manager (Resigned 23 September 2011) 

Principal activities

The principal activity of the Royal Flying Doctor Service of Australia in the course of the financial year was to support the operating 
sections in the provision of health services in rural and remote areas of Australia.  No significant changes in the nature of this activity 
occurred during the year.

Review of operations

The operating surplus of the company for the financial year was $221,864 (2011: deficit of $342,022). No income tax is payable as the 
company is exempt from paying such tax.

The company’s operation for the year was to receive and distribute amongst its member organisations Commonwealth operational 
and capital grants, donations, bequests and legacies, and to conduct the affairs of the company for the mutual benefit of its member 
organisations and people in rural and remote areas of Australia.

The day to day operations for the delivery of services are carried out by the operating sections.

Changes in state of affairs

There was no significant change in the state of affairs of the company during the financial year.
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Change of Name

The Australian Council of the Royal Flying Doctor Service of Australia changed its name on the 18th day of November 2011  
to Royal Flying Doctor Service of Australia.

Subsequent events

There has not been any matter or circumstance occurring subsequent to the end of the financial year that has significantly affected,  
or may significantly affect, the operations of the company, the results of those operations, or the state of affairs of the company in  
future financial years.

Future developments

Disclosure of information regarding likely developments in the operations of the company in future financial years and the expected 
results of those operations is likely to result in unreasonable prejudice to the company. Accordingly, this information has not been 
disclosed in this report.

Indemnification of officers and auditors

The company has not otherwise, during or since the end of the financial year, except to the extent permitted by law, indemnified  
or agreed to indemnify an officer or auditor of the company or of any related body corporate against a liability incurred as such  
an officer or auditor.

Directors’ meetings

The following table sets out the number of directors’ meetings held during the financial year and the number of meetings attended  
by each director.  During the financial year, 8 meetings were held.

Board of directors

Directors Meetings eligible to attend Attended

>  Major General Michael Jeffery AC, AO(Mil), CVO, MC (Retd) 8 7

>  Mr Neville Bassett 8 8

>  Mr David Hills 8 7

>  Ms Joan Treweeke 5 4

>  Mr Mark Gray 8 8

>  Mr Michael Hackman 8 6

>  Mr Peter Kronborg 5 4

>  Mr Murray Rogers AM 2 2

>  Mr John Milhinch OAM 2 1

>  Mr Michael Reid 2 2

Auditor’s independence declaration 
The auditor’s independence declaration is included on page 28 of the annual report.

This directors’ report is signed in accordance with a resolution of directors made pursuant to s.298(2) of the Corporations Act 2001.

On behalf of the Directors

Major General Michael Jeffery AC, AO(MIl), CVO, MC (RETD)

Chairman

Sydney, 29 October 2012

Neville Bassett

Director

Chairman Audit and Risk Committee

Directors’ Report   
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Independent Auditor’s Report    

The Board of Directors
Royal Flying Doctor Service of Australia
Level 8
15 – 17 Young Street
SYDNEY  NSW  2000

29 October 2012  

Dear Board Members

Royal Flying Doctor Service of Australia

In accordance with section 307C of the Corporations Act 2001, I am pleased to provide the following declaration  
of independence to the directors of the Royal Flying Doctor Service of Australia.

As lead audit partner for the audit of the financial statements of the Royal Flying Doctor Service of Australia  
for the financial year ended 30 June 2012, I declare that to the best of my knowledge and belief, there have been  
no contraventions of:

(i) the auditor independence requirements of the Corporations Act 2001 in relation to the audit; and
(ii) any applicable code of professional conduct in relation to the audit.  

Yours sincerely

DELOITTE TOUCHE TOHMATSU

Gaile Pearce
Partner 
Chartered Accountants
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Independent Auditor’s Report    

Independent Auditor’s Report
to the Members of the Royal Flying Doctor Service of Australia

We have audited the accompanying financial report of the Royal Flying Doctor Service of Australia, which comprises 
the statement of financial position as at 30 June 2012, the statement of comprehensive income, statement of cash flows 
and the statement of changes in equity for the year ended on that date, notes comprising a summary of significant 
accounting policies and other explanatory information, and the directors’ declaration as set out on pages 8 to 30. In 
addition, we have audited the Royal Flying Doctor Service of Australia’s compliance with specific requirements of the 
Charitable Fundraising Act 1991 for the year ended 30 June 2012.

Directors’ Responsibility for the Financial Report and Compliance with the Charitable Fundraising Act 1991

The directors of the company are responsible for the preparation of the financial report that gives a true and fair view 
in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards and the Corporations Act 2001 and for compliance with the 
Charitable Fundraising Act 1991.  The directors are also responsible for such internal control as the directors determine 
is necessary to enable compliance with requirements of the Charitable Fundraising Act 1991 and the preparation of the 
financial report that is free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the company’s compliance with specific requirements of the Charitable 
Fundraising Act 1991 and the financial report based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with Australian 
Auditing Standards. Those standards require that we comply with relevant ethical requirements relating to audit 
engagements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the entity has complied with specific 
requirements of the Charitable Fundraising Act 1991 and the financial report is free from material misstatement.  

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the company’s compliance with specific 
requirements of the Charitable Fundraising Act 1991 and amounts and disclosures in the financial report. The 
procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of non-compliance with 
specific requirements of the Charitable Fundraising Act 1991 and material misstatement of the financial report, whether 
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control, relevant to the company’s 
compliance with the Charitable Fundraising Act 1991 and preparation of the financial report that gives a true and fair 
view, in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing 
an opinion on the effectiveness of the company’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness 
of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating 
the overall presentation of the financial report.
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Independent Auditor’s Report    

Inherent Limitations

Because of the inherent limitations of any compliance procedure, it is possible that fraud, error, or non-compliance with 
the Charitable Fundraising Act 1991 may occur and not be detected.  An audit is not designed to detect all weaknesses 
in the Royal Flying Doctor Service of Australia’s compliance with the Charitable Fundraising Act 1991 as an audit is 
not performed continuously throughout the period and the tests are performed on a sample basis.
Any projection of the evaluation of compliance with the Charitable Fundraising Act 1991 to future periods is subject to 
the risk that the procedures, may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance 
with them may deteriorate.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.
Auditor’s Independence Declaration

In conducting our audit, we have complied with the independence requirements of the Corporations Act 2001.  
We confirm that the independence declaration required by the Corporations Act 2001, which has been given to the 
directors of the Royal Flying Doctor Service of Australia, would be in the same terms if given to the directors as at the 
time of this auditor’s report. 

Opinion

In our opinion:
(a) the financial report of the Royal Flying Doctor Service of Australia is in accordance with the Corporations Act 

2001, including:
  (i)  giving a true and fair view of the company’s financial position as at 30 June 2012 and of its performance for the 

year ended on that date; and
  (ii) complying with Australian Accounting Standards and the Corporations Regulations 2001; 
(b) the financial report agrees to the underlying financial records of the Royal Flying Doctor Service of Australia, that 

have been maintained, in all material respects, in accordance with the Charitable Fundraising Act 1991 and its 
regulations for the year ended 30 June 2012; and

(c) monies received by the Royal Flying Doctor Service of Australia, as a result of fundraising appeals conducted 
during the year ended 30 June 2012, have been accounted for and applied, in all material respects, in accordance 
with the Charitable Fundraising Act 1991 and its regulations.

 

DELOITTE TOUCHE TOHMATSU

Gaile Pearce
Partner 
Chartered Accountants

Sydney, 29 October 2012
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Major General Michael Jeffery AC, AO(MIl), CVO, MC (RETD)

Chairman

Sydney, 29 October 2012

Neville Bassett

Director

Chairman Audit and Risk Committee

I, Major General Michael Jeffery AC, AO(Mil), CVO, MC (Retd), Chairman of the Board of Directors of the Royal Flying Doctor Service  
of Australia declare that in my opinion:

a) the financial report gives a true and fair view of the state of affairs with respect to fundraising appeals;

b) the provisions of the Charitable Fundraising Act 1991 and the regulations under that Act and the conditions attached  
to the authority have been complied with; and

c) the internal controls exercised by the Royal Flying Doctor Service of Australia are appropriate and effective in accounting  
for all income received.

On behalf of the Directors

Major General Michael Jeffery AC, AO(MIl), CVO, MC (RETD)

Chairman of the Board of Directors

Sydney, 29 October 2012

Directors’ Declaration 

The directors declare that:

(a) in the directors’ opinion, there are reasonable grounds to believe that the company will be able to pay its debts as and when  
they become due and payable; and

(b) in the directors’ opinion, the attached financial statements and notes thereto are in accordance with the Corporations Act  
2001, including compliance with accounting standards and giving a true and fair view of the financial position and performance  
of the company; 

Signed in accordance with a resolution of the directors made pursuant to s.295(5) of the Corporations Act 2001.

On behalf of the Directors

Declaration in Respect of Fundraising Appeals
For the financial year ended 30 June 2012
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Note 2012 $ 2011 $

Revenue 4 59,612,235 67,429,308

(loss)/gain on disposal of available-for-sale investments (63,911) 565,720

Distributions to sections and programmes (55,790,257) (65,239,923)

National activities expense (699,355) (617,189)

Employee benefits expense 5 (1,588,127) (1,516,227)

Depreciation and amortisation expense (35,894) (70,590)

Operating expenses from in-kind contributions (50,000) (60,000)

Impairment loss on available-for-sale investments (46,140) -

loss on forward exchange contracts (297,090) -

Other administrative expenses (819,597) (833,121)

Net surplus / (deficit) for the year 5 221,864 (342,022)

Other comprehensive income

(loss)/gain on available-for-sale financial assets (158,720) 291,005

Total comprehensive income/(loss) for the year 63,144 (51,017)

Notes to the financial statement are included on pages 37 to 49

Statement of Comprehensive Income
For the financial year ended 30 June 2012
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Note 2012 $ 2011 $

Current assets

Cash and cash equivalents 6 26,221,698 17,504,264

Trade and other receivables 7 3,066,298 13,474,203

Prepayments 37,708 -

Total current assets 29,325,704 30,978,467

Non-current assets

Plant and equipment 8 184,544 46,721

Other financial assets 9 1,186,925 1,250,384

Total non-current assets 1,371,469 1,297,105

Total assets 30,697,173 32,275,572

Current liabilities

Trade and other payables 10 2,153,108 4,378,714

Other financial liabilities 11 199,888 -

Provisions 12 229,345 179,508

Trust fund liability 14 26,205,341 25,999,605

Total current liabilities 28,787,682 30,557,827

Non-current liabilities

Other financial liabilities 11 18,551 -

Total non-current liabilities 18,551 -

Total liabilities 28,806,233 30,557,827

Net assets 1,890,940 1,717,745

Equity

Available-for-sale revaluation reserve 16 (89,157) (40,488)

Retained earnings 17 1,980,097 1,758,233

Total equity 1,890,940 1,717,745

Notes to the financial statement are included on pages 37 to 49

Statement of Financial Position
As at 30 June 2012   



ACN 004 213 067 > For the financial year ended 30 June 201236   ROYAL FLYING DOCTOR SERVICE   |   NATIONAL OFFICE

Available for Sale 
Revaluation Reserve $ Retained Earnings $ Total Equity $

Balance at 1 July 2010 234,227 2,100,255 2,334,482

Net deficit for the year - (342,022) (342,022)
Other comprehensive income for the year 291,005 - 291,005
Total comprehensive loss for the year 291,005 (342,022) (51,017)

Cumulative gain reclassified to profit or loss on sale of 
available-for-sale financial assets

(565,720) - (565,720)

Closing balance at 30 June 2011 (40,488) 1,758,233 1,717,745

Balance at 1 July 2011 (40,488) 1,758,233 1,717,745

Net surplus for the year - 221,864 221,864
Other comprehensive loss for the year (158,720) - (158,720)
Total comprehensive income for the year (158,720) 221,864 63,144

Transfer to profit or loss on impairment of available-for-sale 
investments 

46,140 - 46,140

Cumulative loss reclassified to profit or loss on sale of 
available-for-sale financial assets

63,911 - 63,911

Closing balance at 30 June 2012 (89,157) 1,980,097   1,890,940

Statement of Cash Flows
Note 2012 $ 2011 $

Cash flows from operating activities
Receipts from sections 1,072,725 1,062,877
Receipts from Commonwealth Government 69,747,465 57,030,362
Donations and legacies 2,650,876 2,641,730
Other receipts 913,034 719,471
Payments to suppliers and employees (4,119,528) (1,307,656)
Payments to sections (61,925,200) (67,551,721)

Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities 19(b) 8,339,372 (7,404,937)

Cash flows from investing activities
Interest received 684,489 899,495
Payments for property, plant and equipment (173,717) (12,127)
Dividends received 41,202 52,309

Net cash provided by investing activities 551,974 939,677

Cash flows from financing activities
Payment for settlement of forward exchange contracts (173,912) -

Net cash used in financing activities (173,912) -

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 8,717,434 (6,465,260)

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the financial year 17,504,264 23,969,524

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the financial year 19(a) 26,221,698 17,504,264

Notes to the financial statement are included on pages 37 to 49     

Statement of Changes in Equity
For the financial year ended 30 June 2012
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1. General information 
The Royal Flying Doctor Service of Australia (the company) is incorporated and operates in Australia.

The Royal Flying Doctor Service of Australia’s registered office and its principal place of business is as follows: 

Registered office and principal place of business

level 8, 15-17 Young Street, SYDNEY NSW 2000

The principal activity of the Royal Flying Doctor Service of Australia in the course of the financial year was to support the  
operating sections in the provision of health services in rural and remote areas of Australia.  No significant changes in the  
nature of this activity occurred during the year.

2. Significant accounting policies 

Statement of compliance

These financial statements are general purpose financial statements which have been prepared in accordance with the 
Corporations Act 2001, Accounting Standards and Interpretations, and comply with other requirements of the law.  For the 
purposes of preparing the financial statements, the company is a not-for-profit entity. 

Accounting Standards include Australian Accounting Standards. A statement of compliance with IFRS cannot be made due to the 
application of not for profit sector specific requirements contained in the A-IFRS.

Basis of preparation

The financial statements have been prepared on the basis of historical cost, except for certain non-current assets and financial 
instruments that are measured at revalued amounts or fair values, as explained in the accounting policies below. Cost is based  
on the fair values of the consideration given in exchange for assets. All amounts are presented in Australian dollars, unless 
otherwise noted.

Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty

In the application of the company’s accounting policies, management is required to make judgments, estimates and assumptions 
about carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated 
assumptions are based on historical experience and other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from 
these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in 
the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods  
if the revision affects both current and future periods. 

Standards and Interpretations affecting amounts reported in the current period

There are no new and revised Standards and Interpretation adopted in these financial statements affecting the reporting results  
or financial position.

Standards and Interpretations adopted with no effect on financial statements

The following new and revised Standards and Interpretations have also been adopted in these financial statements.  Their adoption 
has not had any significant impact on the amounts reported in these financial statements but may affect the accounting for future 
transactions or arrangements.

> AASB 2009-14 ‘Amendments to Australian Interpretation – Prepayments of a Minimum Funding Requirement’

> AASB 2009-12 ‘Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards’

> AASB 2010-5 ‘Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards’

> AASB 2010-6 ‘Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards – Disclosures on Transfers of Financial Assets’

The following significant accounting policies have been adopted in the preparation and presentation of the financial report:

(a) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash comprises cash on hand and demand deposits. Cash equivalents are short-term, highly liquid investments that are readily 
convertible to known amounts of cash, which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value and have a maturity of three 
months or less at the date of acquisition.  

(b) Goods and services tax

Revenues, expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of goods and services tax (GST), except:

i. where the amount of GST incurred is not recoverable from the taxation authority, it is recognised as part of the cost  
of acquisition of an asset or as part of an item of expense; or

ii. for receivables and payables which are recognised inclusive of GST.

The net amount of GST recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation authority is included as part of receivables or payables.

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the financial year ended 30 June 2012
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Cash flows are included in the statement of cash flows on a gross basis. The GST component of cash flows arising from investing 
and financing activities which is recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation authority is classified within operating cash flows.

(c) Revenue

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable.  

> Rendering of services
Revenue from a contract to provide services is recognised by reference to the stage of completion of the contract. 

> Donations
Donations represent monies received into the company’s bank account.

> Interest revenue
Interest revenue is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective interest rate 
applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial 
asset to that asset’s net carrying amount.

> In-kind contributions
Revenue (and expense) from non-monetary in-kind contributions, in relation to time donated to the program without 
compensation from the program have been calculated based on actual costs incurred by the donees.

> Dividend income
Dividends are recognised as revenue when the right to receive payment is established.

(d) Government grants

Government grants are assistance by the government in the form of transfers of resources to the company in return for past or 
future compliance with certain conditions relating to the operating activities of the entity. Government grants include government 
assistance where there are no conditions specifically relating to the operating activities of the company other than the requirement 
to operate in certain regions or industry sectors.

Government grants are not recognised until there is reasonable assurance that the company will comply with the conditions 
attaching to them and the grants will be received.

Government grants whose primary condition is that the company should purchase, construct or otherwise acquire non-current 
assets are recognised as deferred income in the statement of financial position and recognised as income on a systematic and 
rational basis over the useful lives of the related assets.

(e) Income tax

The company is exempt from the payment of income tax.

(f) Trust fund liability

The trust fund liability represents a present obligation of amounts owed to Sections and other third parties.

(g) Financial assets

Investments are recognised and derecognised on trade date where the purchase or sale of an investment is under a contract 
whose terms require delivery of the investment within the timeframe established by the market concerned, and are initially 
measured at fair value, net of transaction costs.

Other financial assets are classified into the following specific category: ‘available-for-sale’ financial assets.  
The classification depends on the nature and purpose of the financial assets and is determined at the time of initial recognition.

> Available-for-sale financial assets
Certain shares held by the Company are classified as being available-for-sale and are stated at fair value.  Fair value is 
determined in the manner described in note 20.  Gains and losses arising from changes in fair value are recognised directly in 
other comprehensive income and accumulated in the available-for-sale revaluation reserve with the exception of impairment 
losses which are recognised directly in profit and loss.  Where the investment is disposed of or is determined to be impaired, 
the cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in the available-for-sale revaluation reserve is included in profit or loss.  
Dividends on available-for-sale equity instruments are recognised in profit or loss where the Company’s right to receive the 
dividend is established.

> Loans and receivables
Trade receivables, loans, and other receivables that have fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active 
market are classified as ‘loans and receivables’. loans and receivables are measured at amortised cost using the effective 
interest method less any impairment. Interest income is recognised by applying the effective interest rate. 

Notes to the Financial Statements
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> Impairment of financial assets
Financial assets, other than those at fair value through profit or loss, are assessed for indicators of impairment at each 
reporting date. Financial assets are considered to be impaired where there is objective evidence that as a result of one or 
more events that occurred after the initial recognition of the financial asset, the estimated future cash flows of the investment 
have been affected. For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount of the impairment loss recognised is the 
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows, discounted at the 
financial asset’s original effective interest rate.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by the impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the exception 
of trade receivables, where the carrying amount is reduced through the use of an allowance account. When a trade receivable 
is considered uncollectible, it is written off against the allowance account.  

Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited against the allowance account. Changes in the carrying 
amount of the allowance account are recognised in profit or loss.

When an available-for-sale financial asset is considered to be impaired, cumulative gains or losses previously recognised in 
other comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss in the period.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases and 
the decrease can be related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment was recognised, the previously recognised 
impairment loss is reversed through profit or loss to the extent that the carrying amount of the investment at the date the 
impairment is reversed does not exceed the what the amortised cost would have been had the impairment not been recognised.

In respect of available-for-sale equity securities, impairment losses previously recognised in profit or loss are not reversed 
through profit or loss.  Any increase in fair value subsequent to an impairment loss is recognised in other comprehensive 
income and accumulated under the heading of investments revaluation reserve.  In respect of available-for-sale debt 
securities, impairment losses are subsequently reversed through profit or loss if an increase in the fair value of the investment 
can be objectively related to an event occurring after the recognition of the impairment loss.

(h) Plant and equipment

Depreciation is provided on plant and equipment and is calculated on a straight-line basis so as to write off the net cost or 
other revalued amount of each asset over its expected useful life to its estimated residual value. leasehold improvements are 
depreciated over the period of the lease or estimated useful life, whichever is the shorter, using the straight-line method. The 
estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation method are reviewed at the end of each annual reporting period, with  
the effect of any changes recognised on a prospective basis.

The gain or loss arising on disposal or retirement of an item of plant and equipment is determined as the difference between  
the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss

> The following rates are used in the calculation of depreciation:
Office equipment   15%-20%

leasehold improvements  60%

(i) Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it is probable 
that the Company will be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the present obligation at reporting 
date, taking into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation. Where a provision is measured using the cash flows 
estimated to settle the present obligation, its carrying amount is the present value of those cash flows (where the effect of the time 
value of money is material).

When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle a provision are expected to be recovered from a third party, a receivable 
is recognised as an asset if it is virtually certain that reimbursement will be received and the amount of the receivable can be 
measured reliably.

(j) Leased assets

leases are classified as finance leases when the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to 
ownership of the leased asset to the lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term, except where another 
systematic basis is more representative of the time pattern in which economic benefits from the leased asset are consumed. 
Contingent rentals arising under operating leases are recognised as an expense in the period in which they are incurred.

(k) Employee benefits

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees in respect of wages and salaries, annual leave, and long service leave when it is 
probable that settlement will be required and they are capable of being measured reliably.

liabilities recognised in respect of employee benefits expected to be settled within 12 months, are measured at their nominal values using 
the remuneration rate expected to apply at the time of settlement.

liabilities recognised in respect of employee benefits which are not expected to be settled within 12 months are measured as the present 
value of the estimated future cash outflows to be made by the company in respect of services provided by employees up to reporting date.

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the financial year ended 30 June 2012
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(l) Impairment of long-lived assets excluding goodwill

At the end of each reporting period, the Company reviews the carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets to determine 
whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable 
amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss (if any). Where it is not possible to estimate the 
recoverable amount of an individual asset, the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which the asset 
belongs. Where a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be identified, corporate assets are also allocated to individual cash-
generating units, or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest group of cash-generating units for which a reasonable and consistent 
allocation basis can be identified.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to sell and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash 
flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of 
money and the risks specific to the asset for which the estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted.  If the recoverable amount 
of an asset (or cash generating unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset (or cash generating 
unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss immediately.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit) is increased to the revised 
estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have 
been determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset (or cash-generating unit) in prior years.  A reversal of an 
impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

(m) Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method, with interest expense recognised on 
an effective yield basis.  The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating 
interest expense over the relevant period.  The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments 
through the expected life of the financial liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter period.

(n) Derivative financial instruments

The company enters into derivative financial instruments to manage its exposure to foreign exchange rate risk including foreign exchange 
forward contracts.  Further details of derivative financial instruments are disclosed in Note 20.

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value at the date the derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently remeasured to their fair 
value at the end of each reporting period.  The resulting gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss immediately.

(o) Standards and Interpretations issued not yet effective

At the date of authorisation of the financial statements, the Standards and Interpretations listed below were in issue but not yet effective.   
The potential impact of new or revised Standards and Interpretations has not yet been determined.

Standard/Interpretation Effective for annual reporting 
periods beginning on or after

Expected to be initially applied 
in the financial year ending

AASB 9 ‘Financial Instruments’, AASB 2009-11 and AASB 2010-7 
‘Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards arising from AASB 9’

1 January 2015 30 June 2016

AASB 5 ‘Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued 
Operations’

1 July 2012 30 June 2013

AASB 7 ‘Financial Instruments: Disclosures’ 1 July 2012 30 June 2013

AASB 10 ‘Consolidated Financial Statements’ 1 January 2013 30 June 2014

AASB 11 ‘Joint Arrangements’ 1 January 2013 30 June 2014

AASB 12 ‘Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities’ 1 January 2013 30 June 2014

AASB 13 ‘Fair Value Measurement’ and AASB 2011-8 ‘Amendments 
to Australian Accounting Standards arising from AASB 13’

1 January 2013 30 June 2014

AASB 101 ‘Presentation of Financial Statements’ 1 July 2012 30 June 2013

AASB 112 ‘Income taxes’ 1 July 2012 30 June 2013

AASB 119 ‘Employee Benefits’(2011) and AASB 2011-10 
‘Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards arising from AASB 
119 (2011)’

1 January 2013 30 June 2014

AASB 120 ‘Accounting for Government Grants and Disclosure of 
Government Assistance’

1 July 2012 30 June 2013

AASB 121 ‘The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates’ 1 July 2012 30 June 2013

AASB 127 ‘Separate Financial Statements’ (2011) 1 January 2013 30 June 2014

AASB 128 ‘Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures’ 1 January 2013 30 June 2014

Notes to the Financial Statements
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Standard/Interpretation Effective for annual reporting 
periods beginning on or after

Expected to be initially applied 
in the financial year ending

AASB 132 ‘Financial Instruments: Presentation’ 1 July 2012 30 June 2013

AASB 2011-7 ‘Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards 
arising from the Consolidation and Joint Arrangements Standards’

1 January 2013 30 June 2014

AASB 2011-9 ‘Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards – 
Presentation of Items of Other Comprehensive Income’

1 July 2012 30 June 2013

AASB 2012-2 ‘Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards – 
Disclosures – Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial liabilities’

1 January 2013 30 June 2014

AASB 2012-3 ‘Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards – 
Disclosures – Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial liabilities’

1 January 2014 30 June 2015

AASB 2012-5 ‘Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards 
arising from Annual Improvements 2009-2011 Cycle’

1 January 2013 30 June 2014

AASB 2012-6 ‘Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards 
– Mandatory Effective Date of AASB 9 and Transition Disclosures’ 
(Amendments to AASB 9 and AASB 7)

1 January 2013 30 June 2014

At the date of authorisation of the financial statements, the following IASB was also in issue but not effective, although an Australian 
equivalent Standard has not yet been issued:

Consolidated Financial Statements, Joint Arrangements and 
Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities: Transition Guidance 
(amendments to IFRS 10, IFRS 11 and IFRS 12)

1 January 2013 30 June 2014

3. Segment information 
The Royal Flying Doctor Service of Australia operates predominantly in one business segment being the provision of support to the 
operational Sections in the provision of health service in Australia.

4. Revenue
An analysis of the company’s revenue for the year is as follows: 

2012 $ 2011 $

Contributions from sections 1,100,000 1,100,000

Australian Government Operational Grants 48,550,000 58,477,000

Australian Government eHealth Grant - 43,681

Australian Government Mental Health Grant 717,014 236,951

Australian Government Rural Women’s GP Grant 4,210,999 3,082,262

Donations and legacies 2,650,876 2,641,730

In-kind contributions 50,000 60,000

57,278,889 65,641,624

Other operating revenue

Interest 1,380,327 1,027,151

Dividend income 39,985 41,062

Other items 913,034 719,471

2,333,346 1,787,684

Total revenue 59,612,235 67,429,308

Notes to the Financial Statements
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5. Surplus from operations
Surplus from operations for the year includes the following expenses: 

2012 $ 2011 $

Depreciation of non-current assets 35,894 70,590

Minimum lease payments 109,571 123,082

Employee benefits expense:

Post employment benefits

    - Defined contribution plans 116,250 96,198

Other employee benefits 1,471,877 1,420,029

Total employee benefits expense 1,588,127 1,516,227

6. Cash

2012 $ 2011 $

National Office Cash

Federal account 142,913 118,248

Trust donation account 225,517 139,498

Professional funds account 790,688 431,138

Cash in investment portfolio 96,757 59,380

1,255,875 748,264

Trust Fund Assets

Commonwealth funds – general account 9,156,306 5,308,910

Commonwealth funds – term deposit 14,887,918 11,417,981

Commonwealth Funds – US Dollar Account 891,560 -

Rural women’s GP 30,039 29,109

24,965,823 16,756,000

26,221,698 17,504,264

7. Trade and other receivables

2012 $ 2011 $

Department of Health & Ageing Grant receivable 1,783,657 11,712,430

Dividend income receivable 7,163 8,380

Interest income receivable 823,494 127,656

Other receivables 260,015 232,740

GST receivable 191,969 1,392,997

3,066,298 13,474,203

No allowance has been made for irrecoverable receivables for 2011 and 2012.   
There are no receivables which are past due but not impaired. The average credit period is 30 days.

Notes to the Financial Statements
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8. Plant and equipment
Leasehold 

improvements at cost $
Plant and equipment  

at cost $ Total $

Gross carrying amount

Balance at 1 July 2010 24,538 282,605 307,143

Additions - 12,127 12,127

Disposals - - -

Balance at 1 July 2011 24,538 294,732 319,270

Additions - 173,717 173,717

Disposals - (39,935) (39,935)

Balance at 30 June 2012 24,538 428,514 453,052

Accumulated depreciation and amortisation

Balance at 1 July 2010 20,726 181,233 201,959

Disposals - - -

Depreciation expense 3,812 66,778 70,590

Balance at 1 July 2011 24,538 248,011 272,549

Disposals - (39,935) (39,935)

Depreciation expense - 35,894 35,894

Balance at 30 June 2012 24,538 243,970 268,508

Net book value

As at 30 June 2011 - 46,721 46,721

As at 30 June 2012 - 184,544 184,544

leasehold improvements represent the make good provision and are non-cash.

9. Other financial assets

2012 $ 2011 $

Rental bond deposit 6,270 6,270

Foreign exchange forward contract 98,766 -

Available-for-sale investments carried at fair value:

listed securities 1,081,889 1,244,114

1,186,925 1,250,384

10. Trade and other payables

2012 $ 2011 $

Trade payables (i) 1,589,022 4,195,831

Accruals 564,086 182,883

2,153,108 4,378,714

(i) The average credit period on purchases of goods is 30 days. No interest is charged on overdue payables.  
The Company has financial risk management policies in place to ensure that all payables are paid within the credit timeframe.

Notes to the Financial Statements
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11. Other Financial Liabilities

2012 $ 2011 $

Foreign Exchange Forward Contracts:

Current 199,888 -

Non-Current 18,551 -

Total 218,439 -

12. Provisions

2012 $ 2011 $

Current

Employee benefits:   

 Annual leave (note 13) 140,351 99,786

 long service leave (note 13) 55,092 45,820

Make good provision in operating lease 33,902 33,902

229,345 179,508

13. Employee benefits
The aggregate employee benefit liability recognised and included in the financial statements is as follows:

2012 $ 2011 $

Provision for employee benefits:

Current (note 12) 195,443 145,606

195,443 145,606

2012 No. 2011 No.

Number of full-time employees at the year end 9 7

14. Trust fund liability

2012 $ 2011 $

Commonwealth Funds 26,205,341 25,999,605

26,205,341 25,999,605

15. Contributed equity
No contributed equity has been issued as the company is limited by guarantee.  If the company is wound up, the liability of the members 
is limited to $2 in meeting the liabilities of the company.  At 30 June 2012 the number of members was 9 (2011: 10).

16. Available-for-sale revaluation reserve

2012 $ 2011 $

Balance at beginning of the financial year (40,488) 234,227

Valuation (loss)/gain recognised (158,720) 291,005

Cumulative loss/(gain) reclassified to profit or loss on sale of available-for-sale  
financial assets 63,911 (565,720)

Cumulative loss transferred to profit or loss on impairment of available-for-sale  
financial assets 46,140 -

Balance at end of the financial year (89,157) (40,488)

The available-for-sale revaluation reserve represents accumulated gains and losses arising on the revaluation of available-for-sale 
financial assets that have been recognised in other comprehensive income, net of amounts reclassified to profit or loss when those 
assets have been disposed of or are determined to be impaired.
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17. Retained earnings
2012 $ 2011 $

Balance at beginning of the financial year 1,758,233 2,100,255

Net surplus/(deficit) for the year 221,864 (342,022)

Balance at end of the financial year 1,980,097 1,758,233

18. Leases
The operating leases relate to the office premises. The company has neither an option to purchase the leased asset at the expiry of the 
lease period or to extend for further years.

2012 $ 2011 $

Non-cancellable operating leases

Not longer than 1 year 48,288 87,795

longer than 1 year and not longer than 5 years - 45,873

48,288 133,668

19. Notes to the statement of cash flows
(a) Reconciliation of cash and cash equivalents

For the purposes of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents includes cash on hand and in banks and investments in 
money market instruments, net of outstanding bank overdrafts. Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the financial year as shown in 
the statement of cash flows is reconciled to the related items in the statement of financial position as follows:

2012 $ 2011 $

Federal account 142,913 118,248

Trust donation account 225,517 139,498

Professional funds account 790,688 431,138

Cash in investment portfolio 96,757 59,380

Commonwealth Funds - term deposit 14,887,918 11,417,981

Commonwealth Funds - US Dollar account 891,560 -

Commonwealth Funds - general account 9,156,306 5,308,910

Rural women’s GP 30,039 29,109

Cash and cash equivalents 26,221,698 17,504,264

(b) Reconciliation of (deficit)/surplus for the year to net cash flows from operating activities

2012 $ 2011 $

Surplus/(deficit) for the year 221,864 (342,022)

Interest received/receivable (684,489) (899,495)

Depreciation and amortisation of non-current assets 35,894 70,590

Dividend income received/receivable (39,985) (52,309)

loss/(gain) on sale of available-for-sale financial assets 63,911 (565,720)

Impairment of available-for-sale financial assets 46,140 -

loss on forward exchange contracts 297,090 -

Changes in net assets and liabilities

(Increase)/decrease in assets:

Trade and other receivables 10,406,688 (9,776,627)

 Other financial assets (37,708) 30,838

 Increase/(decrease) in liabilities:

 Trade and other payables (2,019,870) 1,634,504

 Provisions 49,837 2,495,304

Net cash provided by/(used in) operating activities 8,339,372 (7,404,937)
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20. Financial instruments

(a)  Capital risk management

The company manages its capital to ensure it will continue as a going concern. The company’s overall strategy remains unchanged from 
2011.  The capital structure of the company consists of cash and cash equivalents and retained earnings.  Operating cash flows are used 
to maintain and expand the operations of the Royal Flying Doctor Service of Australia.

(b)  Categories of financial instruments

2012 $ 2011 $

Financial assets

Trade and other receivables 3,066,298 13,474,203

Foreign Exchange Forward Contract 98,766 -

Cash and cash equivalents 1,255,875 748,264

Trust fund assets 24,965,823 16,756,000

Available-for-sale investments 1,081,889 1,244,114

2012 $ 2011 $

Financial liabilities

Trade and other payables 2,153,108 4,378,714

Trust fund liability 26,205,341 25,999,605

Foreign Exchange Forward Contract 218,439 -

(c) Financial risk management objectives

The company does not enter into or trade financial instruments, including derivative financial instruments, for speculative purposes.  
The company’s activities expose it primarily to the financial risks of changes in interest rates and currency risk which is mitigated  
through the use of derivative financial instruments.

(d) Significant accounting policies

Details of the significant accounting policies and methods adopted, including the criteria for recognition, the basis of measurement 
and the basis on which income and expenses are recognised, in respect of each class of financial asset, financial liability and equity 
instrument are disclosed in note 2 to the financial statements.

(e) Market risk

The company’s activities expose it to the financial risks of changes in foreign currency exchange rates and interest rates.  In the current 
financial year the company has entered into forward foreign exchange contracts to hedge the exchange rate risk arising on the purchase 
of aircraft.  The company has not used any derivative financial instruments to hedge its exposure to interest rate risk.  There has been 
no change to the company’s exposure to market risks or the manner in which it manages and measures the interest rate risk from the 
previous period.

(f) Interest rate risk management

The exposure to interest rate risk is limited to the impact of any changes on the cash and trust fund assets balances of $26,221,698  
(2011: $17,504,264).

These cash balances earn interest at an average rate of 4.87% (2011: 4.34%) per annum.

(g) Credit risk management

Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty will default on its contractual obligations resulting in financial loss to the company.  
The company has adopted a policy of only dealing with creditworthy counterparties and obtaining sufficient collateral where appropriate, 
as a means of mitigating the risk of financial loss from defaults. 

The company does not have any significant credit risk exposure to any single counterparty or any group of counterparties having similar 
characteristics.

Notes to the Financial Statements
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(h)  Fair value of financial instruments

The Directors consider that the carrying amount of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the financial statements 
approximates their fair values, determined in accordance with the accounting policies disclosed in Note 2 to the financial statements.

Fair value measurements recognised in the statement of financial position
The following table provides an analysis of financial instruments that are measured subsequent to initial recognition at fair value, 
grouped into levels 1 to 3 based on the degree to which the fair value is observable.

>   level 1 fair value measurements are those derived from quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 1 $ Total $

Financial assets 30/06/2012

Equity securities 1,081,889 1,081,889

Financial assets 30/06/2011

Equity securities 1,244,114 1,244,114

(i) Liquidity risk management

Ultimate responsibility for liquidity risk management rests with the board of directors, who have built an appropriate liquidity risk 
management framework for the management of the company’s short, medium and long term funding and liquidity management 
requirements.  The company manages liquidity risk by maintaining adequate reserves and banking facilities by monitoring forecast and 
actual cash flows and matching the maturity profiles of financial assets and liabilities.  The company also uses a trade receivables and 
trade payables finance facility to manage its liquidity risk.

Liquidity and interest risk tables
The following table details the company’s remaining contractual maturity for its non-derivative financial liabilities.  The table has been 
drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities based on the earliest date on which the company can be required 
to pay.  The table includes both interest and principal cash flows.

Weighted average 
effective interest rate 

Less than  
1 month 1-3 months

3 months 
-1 year 1-5 years 5+ years

Liabilities % $ $ $ $ $

2012

Non-interest bearing - - 2,153,125 26,405,212 18,551 -

Variable interest rate 
instruments - - - - - -

- 2,153,125 26,405,212 18,551 -

2011

Non-interest bearing - - 4,378,714 25,999,605 - - 

Variable interest rate 
instruments - - - - - - 

- 4,378,714 25,999,605 - - 

The following table details the Company’s liquidity analysis for its derivative financial instruments. The table has been drawn up based on 
the undiscounted contractual net cash inflows and outflows on derivative instruments that settle on a net basis, and the undiscounted gross 
inflows and outflows on those derivatives that require gross settlement. When the amount payable or receivable is not fixed, the amount 
disclosed has been determined by reference to the projected interest rates as illustrated by the yield curves at the end of the reporting period.

Less than  
1 month $ 1-3 months $

3 months 
-1 year $ 1-5 years $ 5+ years $

2012

Gross Settled - Foreign Exchange 
Forward Contracts - 1,723,895 5,581,311 7,293,833 -

- 1,723,895 5,581,311 7,293,833 -

2011

- - - - -

- - - - -
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The following table details the forward foreign currency contracts outstanding at the end of the reporting period:

Outstanding 
Contracts

Average Exchange Rate Foreign Currency Notional Value
Fair Value of Hedge 

Instrument

2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011

$ $ $ $ $ $ $ $

Forward foreign currency 
contracts

1 to 3 months 1.000 - 1,723,878 - 1,723,895 - 17 -

3 months to 1 year 1.037 - 5,381,440 - 5,581,311 - 199,871 -

1 to 5 years 0.989 - 7,374,048 - 7,293,833 - (80,215) -

119,673 -

21. Key management personnel compensation

Details of key management personnel

The directors and other members of key management personnel of the company during the year were:

Directors Other key management personnel

> Major General Michael Jeffery AC, AO(Mil), CVO, MC (Retd) > Greg Rochford

> David Hills  National Chief Executive Officer

> Neville Bassett > David Alley 

> Joan Treweeke  National Director of Finance and Corporate Services

> Mark Gray > Dr Hugh Burke 

> Michael Hackman  National Director Policy and Planning

> Peter Kronborg > Janice Hoogeveen

> Murray Rogers  National Marketing Director

> John Milhinch

> Michael Reid

The aggregate compensation made to other key management personnel of the company is set out below:

2012 $ 2011 $

Short-term employee benefits 864,347 341,013

The directors received no compensation for their services to the company in respect of the financial year.
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22. Information required by Condition 7 3(c)(vi) of the Authority Conditions  
pursuant to the Charitable Fundraising Act 1991

2012 $ 2011 $

Gross income from fundraising:

Donations and legacies 2,643,849 2,641,730

listed securities 7,027 -

2,650,876 2,641,730

Total costs of fundraising (95,009) (99,907)

Funds disbursed for Royal Flying Doctor projects (2,352,546) (2,145,044)

Excess of total income from fundraising over funds disbursed 203,321 396,779

% %

Total costs to gross income from fundraising 3.58 3.78

Net excess to gross income from fundraising 7.67 15.02

Total disbursements for projects to total expenditure 96.12 95.55

Total disbursements for projects to total income received 92.33 84.98

It is the policy of the Royal Flying Doctor Service of Australia to distribute all donations, legacies and sponsorships which comprise its 
fundraising activities to each of its Sections, other than an amount approved by Board Resolution to be retained by the National Office 
up to $250,000 per annum. Given the nature of these activities, it has minimal costs associated with fundraising.  Furthermore, due to the 
timing of receipts and payments it is considered reasonable that gross income may exceed funds disbursed or that funds disbursed may 
exceed gross income at year end.

23. Remuneration of auditors
Amounts received, or due and receivable, by the auditors from the company and any related body corporate is as follows:

2012 $ 2011 $

Auditing the financial statements and grant funding agreements 33,600 36,900

Consulting and other assurance services 58,300 48,850

91,900 85,750

The auditor of the Australian Council of the Royal Flying Doctor Service of Australia is Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu.

24. Related party disclosures
During the current financial year, there were no related party transactions or balances at the year-end.

25. Subsequent events
There has not arisen during the interval between the end of the reporting period and the date of this report any item, transaction or event 
of a material and unusual nature that has, in the opinion of the Directors of the company, significantly affected or may significantly affect 
the operations of the company, the results of those operations or the state of affairs of the company in subsequent financial years.
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Section Aviation Statistics 

Number of Landings Kilometres Flown Block Time (Hours)

Section
No. of 

Aircraft RFDS Charter Total RFDS Charter Total RFDS Charter Total

Central Operations

Adelaide 4 6691 0 6691 2011678 0 2011678 5350 5350

Alice Springs 4 3867 436 4303 1972555 194632 2167187 5218 515 5733

Port Augusta 3 4318 0 4318 1324436 0 1324436 3503 3503

TOTAL 11 14876 436 15312 5308669 194632 5503301 14071 515 14586

Queensland Section

Brisbane 2 4,041 318 4,359 1,338,627 66,870 1,405,498 4,055 235 4,290

Bundaberg 1 2,747 - 2,747 686,309 - 686,309 2,244 - 2,244

Cairns 6 4,109 282 4,391 1,478,435 62,861 1,541,296 4,727 255 4,983

Charleville 1 1,155 - 1,155 460,187 - 460,187 1,403 - 1,403

Longreach - - - - - - - - - -

Mount Isa 4 2,845 - 2,845 769,752 - 769,752 2,428 - 2,428

Rockhampton 3 3,682 - 3,682 1,331,499 - 1,331,499 3,906 - 3,906

Roma 1 443 443 115,137 - 115,137 360 - 360

Townsville 2 3,382 94 3,476 1,540,220 16,490 1,556,710 4,231 76 4,306

TOTAL 20 22,404 694 23,098 7,720,166 146,221 7,866,387 23,355 566 23,921

South Eastern Section

Broken Hill 4 2419 0 2419 714483 0 714483 2474 2474

Dubbo 3 2556 - 2556 727960 - 727960 2444 - 2444

Bankstown 1 373 680 1053 100217 176714 276931 316 650 966

Launceston 1 2213 - 2213 437807 - 437807 1857 - 1857

Essendon 2 353 - 353 139265 - 139265 422 - 422

Mascot 8 8782 - 8782 2721784 - 2721784 10115 - 10115

TOTAL 19 16696 680 17376 4841516 176714 5018230 17628 650 18278

Western Operations

Derby 3 2,623 1,395 4,018 1,261,453 193,903 1,455,356 3,814.6 787.9 4,602.5

Jandakot 4 6,240 410 6,650 2,372,147 48,708 2,420,855 7,515.6 224.1 7,739.7

Kalgoorlie 2 2,095 287 2,382 1,017,748 88,861 1,106,609 3,002.6 362.2 3,364.8

Meekatharra 2 1,915 108 2,023 1,114,247 22,856 1,137,103 3,160.2 95.3 3,255.5

Port Hedland 3 2,275 609 2,884 1,377,390 122,836 1,500,226 3,876.5 442.8 4,319.3

Perth Domestic 1 353 52 405 476,792 112,837 589,629 761.4 157.5 918.9

TOTAL 15 15,501 2,861 18,362 7,619,777 590,001 8,209,778 22,130.9 2,069.8 24,200.7
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Total All Sections

Number of Landings Kilometres Flown Block Time (Hours)

Year
No. of 

Aircraft RFDS Charter Total RFDS Charter Total RFDS Charter Total

2011/2012  65 #  69,477  4,671  74,148  25,490,128  1,107,568  26,597,696  77,185  3,801  80,986 

2010/2011 64 * 71,017 4,701 75,718 25,598,693 1,270,997 26,869,690 77,114 3,845  80,959 

2009/2010 60 68,696 5,518 74,214 24,383,443 1,209,012 25,592,455 72,895 4,470 77,365

2008/2009 53 65,141 6,629 71,770 22,414,964 1,508,476 23,923,440 67,786 5,425 73,211

2007/2008 51 62,566 6,458 69,024 21,738,198 1,442,240 23,180,438 65,256 5,320 70,576

2006/2007 47 60,013 5,061 65,074 20,656,438 1,058,157 21,714,595 61,685 4,113 65,798

2005/2006 50 58,416 4,595 63,011 19,535,099 907,975 20,443,074 57,597 3,784 61,381

2004/2005 47 55,542 2,315 57,857 18,515,809 1,008,550 19,524,359 54,607 4,225 58,832

2003/2004 45 56,008 2,004 58,012 18,428,169 1,092,198 19,520,367 56,050 4,213 60,263

2002/2003 36 37,024 1,347 38,371 13,732,239 338,564 14,070,803 40,269 1,402 41,672

2001/2002 40 45,313 3,897 49,210 15,544,830 1,037,661 16,602,491 45,681 4,012 49,693

2000/2001 42 36,307 3,930 40,237 14,811,922 1,175,306 15,987,228 43,141 4,319 47,459

1999/2000 40 39,600 3,882 43,482 13,538,175 1,018,235 14,556,410 40,319 3,884 44,203

1998/1999 41 39,513 2,919 42,432 12,681,197 1,006,715 13,687,912 39,405 3,760 43,165

1997/1998 40 36,415 3,624 40,039 12,544,579 803,889 13,348,468 35,957 2,999 38,956

1996/1997 38 31,613 3,118 34,731 11,202,447 724,765 11,927,212 32,230 2,737 34,967

1995/1996 38 31,289 2,730 34,019 10,732,934 583,434 11,316,368 31,645 2,199 33,844

1994/1995 36 27,548 2,303 29,851 8,940,914 542,519 9,483,433 26,786 1,958 28,744

1993/1994 37 25,589 1,647 27,236 8,401,110 290,430 8,691,540 25,377 1,124 26,501

1992/1993 37 24,963 2,509 27,472 8,301,017 473,512 8,774,529 25,711 1,738 27,449

1991/1991 37 23,420 2,982 26,402 7,638,207 615,210 8,253,417 24,301 2,305 26,606

* Includes 3 aircraft to be sold in South Eastern Section

# Includes 1 aircraft to be sold in South Eastern Section and 3 aircraft in Central Operations to be replaced within operational fleet

Aviation Statistics   
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Central Operations Aircraft Register 

Registration Letters Description Manufactured
Date of 

Acquisition Dedication Major Sponsor

VH-FMP  * Pilatus PC-12 1995 Sep-95 – –

VH-FMW  * Pilatus PC-12 1995 Sep-95 – –

VH-FMZ  * Pilatus PC-12 1996 Mar-96
Roy & Marjory 
Edwards

–

VH-FDE Pilatus PC-12 2000 Sep-00 – OZ Minerals

VH-FGR Pilatus PC-12 2001 Dec-01 – –

VH-FGS Pilatus PC-12 2001 Dec-01 – –

VH-FGT Pilatus PC-12 2001 Dec-01 – –

VH-FDK Pilatus PC-12 2002 Dec-03 – – 

VH-FDJ Pilatus PC-12 2007 Jan-08
Beth 
Stewart Klugh

– 

VH-FVA Pilatus PC-12 2009 Mar-10
Our Auxilaries & 
Support Groups

Variety - The 
Children's Charity

VH-FVB Pilatus PC-12 2010 Apr-10 – BHP Billiton

VH-FVD Pilatus PC-12 2010 Jul-10
Our Inaugural 
Doctors

Li-Ka Shing 
Foundation

VH-FVE Pilatus PC-12 2010 Sep-10
Our Pioneering 
Women

– 

VH-FVF Pilatus PC-12 2010 Oct-10 Barry Lodge OAM – 

* Aircraft replaced within operational fleet as part of Aircraft Replacement Program

Queensland Section Aircraft Register 

Registration Letters Description Manufactured Date of Acquisition Name

VH-FDA Beechcraft Kingair B200 2007 Aug-07 RFDS Bundaberg

VH-FDB Beechcraft Kingair B200 2007 May-07 RFDS Townsville

VH-FDC Pilatus PC - 12 2001 Nov-01 RFDS Mt Isa

VH-FDD Beechcraft Super Kingair B200SE 2000 Apr-00 RFDS Cairns

VH-FDF Beechcraft Super Kingair B200SE 2000 Sep-00 RFDS Cairns

VH-FDG Beechcraft Kingair B200 2009 Jul-09 RFDS Mt Isa

VH-FDI Beechcraft Kingair B200C 2010 Nov-10 RFDS Rockhampton

VH-FDM Beechcraft Kingair B200C 2010 Nov-10 RFDS Brisbane

VH-FDO Beechcraft Kingair B200 1982 Feb-95 RFDS Carins

VH-FDP Pilatus PC - 12 2001 Nov-01 RFDS Charleville

VH-FDR Beechcraft Kingair B200 2004 Dec-04 RFDS Rockhampton

VH-FDS Beechcraft Kingair B200C 2010 Sep-10 RFDS Townsville

VH-FDT Beechcraft Kingair B200 2007 Oct-07 RFDS Brisbane

VH-FDW Beechcraft Kingair B200 2004 Dec-04 RFDS Rockhampton

VH-FDZ Beechcraft Kingair B200 2004 Dec-04 RFDS Roma

VH-FFI Beechcraft Kingair B200 1982 Feb-95 RFDS Mt Isa

VH-NQ Beechcraft Kingair B200 1982 Apr-91 Marjorie Loveday (Cairns Base)

VH-NQB Pilatus PC - 12 2001 Nov-01 RFDS Mt Isa

VH-NQC Cessna C208 2009 Oct-09 RFDS Cairns

VH-NQD Cessna C208 2009 Oct-09 RFDS Cairns

Aviation Statistics   
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South Eastern Section Aircraft Register 

Registration Letters Description Manufactured Date of Acquisition Name

VH-MSZ # Beecraft Kingair B200C 1981 Dec-86 Fred McKay

VH-MVY Beecraft Kingair B200C 1989 Sep-98 Flying Doctor Society

VH-MSM Beecraft Kingair B200C 1993 Jun-96  –

VH-MVL Beecraft Kingair B200C 1989 Oct-97 Outback Car Trek

VH-MWX Beecraft Kingair B200C 1992 Aug-99 –

VH-MVS Beecraft Kingair B200C 2002 Jun-03 –

VH-MVP Beecraft Kingair B200C 2002 Sep-03 –

VH-MSH Beecraft Kingair B200C 2001 Sep-03 – 

VH-MWV Beecraft Kingair B200C 2003 Dec-03 Kaye Melmeth

VH-MVJ Beecraft Kingair B200C 2003 Jul-04 Lady Nancy

VH-MVW Beecraft Kingair B200C 2007 May-07 RFDS Friends

VH-MWK Beecraft Kingair B200C 2008 Dec-08 – 

VH-MVX Beecraft Kingair B200C 2008 Dec-08 – 

VH-MWH Beecraft Kingair B200C 2008 Dec-08 – 

VH-NAJ Beecraft Kingair B300C 2011 Jan-12 – 

VH-NAO Beecraft Kingair B300C 2011 Jan-12 – 

VH-AMQ Beecraft Kingair B200C 2011 Sep-11 – 

VH-AMR Beecraft Kingair B200C 2011 Sep-11 – 

VH-AMS Beecraft Kingair B200C 2011 Sep-11 –

* Aircraft to be sold

Western Operations Aircraft Register 

Registration Letters Description Manufactured Date of Acquisition Name

VH-KWO Pilatus PC-12 2001 Jun-01 –

VH-MWO Pilatus PC-12 2001 Aug-01 –

VH-NWO Pilatus PC-12 2001 Nov-01 –

VH-VWO Pilatus PC-12 2002 Dec-01 –

VH-YWO Pilatus PC-12 2006 Sep-06 –

VH-ZWO Pilatus PC-12 2004 Feb-04 –

VH-OWA Pilatus PC-12 2009 Jun-09 –

VH-OWP Pilatus PC-12 2008 Aug-08 –

VH-OWQ Pilatus PC-12 2008 Nov-08 –

VH-OWR Pilatus PC-12 2008 Jan-09 –

VH-OWB Pilatus PC-12 2009 Dec-09 –

VH-OWD Pilatus PC-12 2009 Jan-10 –

VH-OWG Pilatus PC-12 2009 Mar-10 –

VH-OWI Pilatus PC-12 2010 Dec-10 –

VH-RIO Hawker 800XP 2002 Oct-09 –
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Section Health Statistics 

Section Telehealth Patients Attended

Radio Telephone

Video 
Conference 

or other TOTAL

RFDS 
General 
Practice 
Clinics

RFDS Other 
Clinics

RFDS 
Medical 
Services

RFDS 
Faciliated 

Clinics

RFDS staff 
at non RFDS 

Clinic Inpatients

Rural 
Women’s GP 

Program TOTAL

Central Operations

Alice Springs - - - - - - -  7,859 - - -  7,859 

Port Augusta -  6,122 -  6,122  1,886  922 -  3,327 - - -  6,135 

Adelaide - - - - - - - - - -  2,531  2,531 

Tennant Creek General Practice - - - -  3,262  1,947 - - - - -  5,209 

Marree Health Service -  567 -  567 -  2,974 -  304 - - -  3,278 

TOTAL -  6,689 -  6,689  5,148  5,843  -    11,490  -    -    2,531  25,012 

NB Data for Port Augusta Facilitated Clinics is collected and provided to RFDS by Port Augusta Hospital and Regional Health Service. Data for Alice Springs Facilitated Clinics is collected and provided to RFDS by NT Health, 
Remote Health Branch Alice Springs. RFDS other clinics include clinics conducted by RFDS Community Health Nurse. RFDS facilitated clinics utilises RFDS aircraft to transport non RFDS Allied Health clinicians.

Queensland Section

Brisbane  1  6,313  23  6,337  -    -    -    215  -    -    2,853  3,068 

Bundaberg  -    4,771  23 4,794  -    -    -    -    -    -    -   0

Cairns  1  9,246  156 9,403  11,996  15,518  -    63  -    -    2,002 29,579

Charleville  1  2,006  48 2,055  2,808  1,737  -    107  -    -    -   4,652

Longreach  -    413  10 423  -    760  -    -    -    -    -   760

Mount Isa  1  5,566  8 5,575  4,513  2,378  -    53  -    -    -   6,944

Rockhampton  2  6,226  42 6,270  -    -    -    -    -    -    -   0

Townsville  -    6,199  26 6,225  734  455  -    -    -    -    -   1,189

TOTAL  6  40,740  336 41,082  20,051 20,848 - 438 - - 4855 46,192

Telehealth includes remote consultations and taskings from Retrieval Services QlD. IHTs include onsite treatments. RFDS Other Clinics includes Wellbeing Centre patient contacts. Wellbeing Centres do not hold clinics,  
so therefore the number of clinics for Cairns has not increased.

South Eastern Section

Broken Hill 0 5373 0 5373 8305 4329 497 - - - -  13,131 

Dubbo - - - 0 - 576 - - - - -  576 

Cooper Basin - - - 0 254 5946 - - - - -  6,200 

Bankstown - - - 0 - - - 17137 - - -  17,137 

Launceston - - - 0 - - - - - - -  -   

Essendon - - - 0 - - - - - - -  -   

Mascot - - - 0 - - - - - - -  -   

NSW - - - 0 - - - - - - 2849  2,849 
VIC - - - 0 - - - - - - 687  687 
TAS - - - 0 - - - - - - 1407  1,407 

TOTAL -  5,373  -    5,373  8,559  10,851  497  17,137 - -  4,943  41,987 

Western Operations

Derby  10  6,067 -  6,077  196  1,886   -     6,883 - - -  8,965 

Jandakot  5  11,333 -  11,338 -  410  291  1,649 -  119  4,051  6,520 

Kalgoorlie -  6,199 -  6,199  1,057  380   -     8 -  42 -  1,487 

Meekatharra  5  5,669 -  5,674  729 -  6,304 - -  1,950 -  8,983 

Port Hedland  51  6,047 -  6,098  1,696  287  10  3,320 -  37 -  5,350 

Perth Domestic - - - - - - - - - - -   -    

TOTAL  71  35,315 -  35,386  3,678  2,963  6,605  11,860 -  2,148  4,051  31,305 

Total All Sections 

2011/2012  77  88,117  336  88,530  37,436  40,505  7,102  40,925 -  2,148  16,380  144,496 

2010/2011 14 92,608 460 93,082 37,765 32,201 6,592 49,293 349 1,978 16,874 145,052

2009/2010 40 91,237 346 91,623 38,478 32,457 6,532 46,527 508 2,535 18,977 146,014

2008/2009 4 85,088 204 85,296 40,991 30,521 7,046 44,070 1,026 3,369 18,234 145,257

2007/2008 7 86,736 184 86,927 42,591 28,082 7,177 30,557 3,186 3,756 17,175 132,524

2006/2007 9 75,277 153 75,439 45,167 19,499 6,115 33,507 3,996 2,916 15,926 127,126

2005/2006 5 77,038 92 77,135 37,324 19,690 7,069 34,394 790 8,271 16,323 119,035

2004/2005 8 73,686 - 73,694 39,897 17,773 6,613 38,124 919 6,805 15,838 121,949

2003/2004 34 57,763 - 57,797 36,534 16,719 7,621 35,465 793 6,487 13,836 114,195

2002/2003 12 58,725 8 58,745 41,874 19,917 8,349 30,025 2,084 6,453 11,667 117,784

2001/2002 55 57,030 - 57,085 41,306 18,927 7,328 27,029 1,774 3,305 5,935 108,657

2000/2001 122 54,187 - 54,309 43,850 18,956 6,677 26,546 1,838 4,057 4,374 106,298

1999/2000 333 47,035 - 47,368 54,400 12,636 6,875 28,109 631 4,378 1,877 108,906

1998/1999 440 48,957 - 49,397 74,839 17,786 - - - 13,810 - 106,435

1997/1998 310 44,233 - 44,543 73,678 18,204 - - - 18,454 - 110,336

1996/1997 391 39,348 - 39,739 76,353 23,928 - - - 6,993 - 107,274

1995/1996 524 35,916 - 36,440 62,486 36,109 - - - 6,500 - 105,095

1994/1995 609 33,243 - 33,852 57,325 37,255 - - - 6,242 - 100,822

1993/1994 798 35,638 - 36,436 44,445 36,255 - - - 7,187 - 87,887

1992/1993 1,172 36,000 - 37,172 51,690 37,111 - - - 9,926 - 98,727

1991/1991 2,253 36,234 - 38,487 52,172 35,490 - - - 9,848 - 97,510

Health Statistics   
For the financial year ended 30 June 2012
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Total All Sections 

2011/2012  6,312  3,565  5,511  3,904  1,432  14,412  4,964  31,872  368  424  40,705 

2010/2011 5,908 3,609 5,248 3,647 1,432 13,936 4,620 34,815 418 469 40,322

2009/2010 7,305 3,503 5,124 3,599 1,565 13,791 4,881 33,138 394 439 38,852

2008/2009 6,200 3,732 5,216 3,479 1,577 14,004 4,260 32,572 274 378 37,484

2007/2008 6,367 4,003 5,201 3,686 1,424 14,314 4,554 30,709 302 418 35,983

2006/2007 4,893 3,678 3,741 3,445 1,383 12,247 3,982 30,308 415 384 35,089

2005/2006 6,770 3,473 3,397 3,434 1,313 11,617 3,732 29,545 432 494 34,203

2004/2005 5,501 3,681 2,435 3,684 1,439 11,239 3,899 28,225 646 569 33,339

2003/2004 4,825 3,268 2,145 3,421 1,163 9,997 3,804 27,427 714 1,462 33,606

2002/2003 5,745 3,039 2,415 3,250 835 9,870 3,694 24,179 724 1,443 30,040

2001/2002 5,277 3,225 2,408 2,528 700 8,861 3,846 20,336 499 1,296 25,977

2000/2001 5,519 2,792 2,147 2,305 330 7,574 4,097 19,240 - 590 23,927

1999/2000 5,102 2,193 877 3,149 164 6,383 4,834 16,755 - 602 22,191

1998/1999 6,091 5,393 - - - 5,393 5,961 16,516 - 543 23,020

1997/1998 5,138 5,410 - - - 5,410 5,377 16,227 - - 21,604

1996/1997 1,154 4,171 - - - 4,171 5,033 12,113 - - 17,146

1995/1996 1,077 4,743 - - - 4,743 5,766 11,193 - - 16,959

1994/1995 1,125 4,408 - - - 4,408 14,105 - - - 14,105

1993/1994 5,160 4,976 - - - 4,976 13,885 - - - 13,885

1992/1993 3,595 5,061 - - - 5,061 14,270 - - - 14,270

1991/1991 3,419 5,172 - - - 5,172 13,596 - - - 13,596

 

Section Immunisations Number Of Clinics Conducted Number Of Patients Transported

RFDS 
General 
Practice 
Clinics

RFDS Other 
Clinics

RFDS 
Facilitated 

Clinics

Rural 
Women's GP 

Program TOTAL
Primary 

Evacuations
Interhospital 

Transfers

Patient 
transported 
from a clinic Repatriations TOTAL

Central Operations

Alice Springs - - -  884 -  884  1,619  1,022 -  53  2,694 

Port Augusta  435  179  171  504 -  854  57  1,816  44 -  1,917 

Adelaide - - - -  258  258  22  4,278 -  32  4,332 

Tennant Creek General Practice  260  240  240 - -  480 - - - -  -   

Marree Health Service  11 -  255  48 -  303 - - - -  -   

TOTAL  706  419  666  1,436  258  2,779  1,698  7,116  44  85  8,943 

Queensland Section

Brisbane  -    -    -    15  216  231  2  2,373  -    35  2,410 

Bundaberg  -    -    -    -    -   0  6  1,789  -    7 1802

Cairns  2,361  1,076  1,523  12  236 2,847  506  522  -    12 1040

Charleville  924  262  297  24  -   583  77  250  16  13 356

Longreach  -    -    459  -    -   459  -    -    -    -   0

Mount Isa  1,385  327  459  5  -   791  423  501  46  3 973

Rockhampton  -    -    -    -    -   0  7  2,487  -    16 2510

Townsville  137  51  46  -    -   97  20  2,336  1  9 2366

TOTAL 4,807 1,716 2,784 56 452 5,008 1,041 10,258 63 95 11,457

South Eastern Section

Broken Hill 238 935 852 52 -  1,839 416 473 - -  889 

Dubbo - - 81 - -  81 354 909 - -  1,263 

Cooper Basin - 51 730 - -  781 - - - -  -   

Bankstown - - - 1083 -  1,083 - - - -  -   

Launceston - - - - -  -   - 1016 - -  1,016 

Essendon - - - - -  -   - 155 - -  155 

Mascot - - - - -  -   - 5299 - -  5,299 

NSW - - - - 234  234 - - - - -

VIC - - - - 56  56 - - - - -

TAS - - - - 116  116 - - - - -

TOTAL  238  986  1,663  1,135  406  4,190  770  7,852 - -  8,622 

Western Operations

Derby  269  26  167  773 -  966  379  791  214  84  1,468 

Jandakot  49  42  202  316  560  223  3,407  5  99  3,734 

Kalgoorlie  146  187  118  1 -  306  315  878  11  34  1,238 

Meekatharra  43  74 - - -  74  183  501  -    -    684 

Port Hedland  54  157  71  301 -  529  348  821  31  16  1,216 

Perth Domestic - - - - -   -     7  248 -  11  266 

TOTAL  561  444  398  1,277  316  2,435  1,455  6,646  261  244  8,606 

Health Statistics   
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Staff Employed as at 30 June 2012 
Central  

Operations
Queensland  

Section
South Eastern  

Section
Western  

Operations
Victorian  
Section

National 
Office Total

F/T *P/T F/T *P/T F/T *P/T F/T *P/T F/T *P/T F/T *P/T F/T *P/T

Administration 23 7 71 38 18 7 34 15 2 10 9 2 157 79

Allied Health - - - - - - - - - - - - 0 0

Dental - - - - 4 - - 2 - - - - 4 2

Engineers / Engineering Support 13 - 3 1 35 2 15 - - - - - 66 3

General Hands - 1 - - - - - - - - - - 0 1

Health Promotion - 3 7 3 - - 3 13 1 - - - 11 19

Indigenous Health Workers / 
Liaison Staff

1 - 3 10 - - - - - - - - 4 10

Medical Practitioners 7 2 # 20 52 11 1 ## 26 43 - - - - 64 98

Medical Specialist - - - - - - 1 4 - - - - 1 4

Mental Health / Drug & Alcohol 1 - 39 5 3 1 - - - - - - 43 6

Operational Coordinators 1 - - - - - 16 - 2 - - - 19 0

Paramedics - - - - - - - - 3 35 - - 3 35

Pilots 32 2 56 2 47 1 42 4 - - - - 177 9

Public Relations / Fundraising 7 - 4 3 7 6 4 5 4 5 - - 26 19

Radio Staff / Tasking Coordinators 8 4 - - 1 2 - - - 4 - - 9 10

Registered Nurses 29 20 56 22 20 8 27 34 - 31 - - 132 115

Tourist Facilities /  
Merchandising / Other

2 14 - - 1 4 2 1 - - - - 5 19

Total Staff 124 53 259 136 147 32 170 121 12 85 9 2 721 429

Grand Total Staff 1150

* Includes Casual Staff
# In addition 12 part-time female Medical Practitioners are contracted to the RWGPS program
## In addition 24 part-time female Medical Practitioners are contracted to the RWGPS program

FTE - Staff Employed as at 30 June 2012 
Central  

Operations
Queensland  

Section
South Eastern  

Section
Western  

Operations
Victorian  
Section

National 
Office Total

FTE FTE FTE FTE FTE FTE

Administration 26.1 87.03 22.3 43.03 7 9.08 194.54

Allied Health - - - - - - -

Dental - - 4 1.32 - - 5.32

Engineers / Engineering Support 13 3.79 36.2 15 - - 67.99

General Hands 0.9 - - - - 0.9

Health Promotion 2.4 8.4 - 3.66 1 - 15.46

Indigenous Health Workers / 
Liaison Staff

1 8.6 - - - - 9.6

Medical Practitioners 7.8 28.56 11.1 35.69 - - 83.15

Medical Specialist - - - 3.2 - - 3.2

Mental Health / Drug & Alcohol 1 42.4 3.5 - - - 46.9

Operational Coordinators 1 - - 16 2 - 19

Paramedics - - - - 30 - 30

Pilots 33 56.5 47 44.1 - 180.6

Public Relations / Fundraising 7 5.9 9.9 6.35 7 - 36.15

Radio Staff / Tasking Coordinators 11.4 2.4 - 3.6 - 17.4

Registered Nurses 37.7 59.25 22.1 48.36 26.4 - 193.81

Tourist Facilities /  
Merchandising / Other

5.9 - 3.8 2.8 - 12.5

Total Staff FTE* 148.2 300.43 162.3 219.51 77 9.08 916

Grand Total FTE 916

* These figures include full-time, fixed term contract and casual employees

Employment Statistics   
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RFDS Traditional Services are funded by the Commonwealth government and include Primary Evacuations, GP and Nursing Clinics, 
Remote Consultations and Medical Chests.

In the table below our activity under these service areas is shown for the last six years:

Traditional Service Activity 2006/7 2007/8 2008/9 2009/10 2010/11 2011/12

Primary Evacuations 3,891 4,386 4,149 4,609 4,591 4,964

GP Clinics 2,894 3,236 2,957 3,019 2,894 3,054

Patient Contacts at GP Clinics 29,709 28,810 30,311 30,554 29,759 31,018

Nursing Clinics 1,421 1,373 1,433 1,411 1,376 1,587

Patient Contacts at Nursing 
Clinics

10,142 9,852 11,464 9,670 9,588 10,432

Remote Consultations 53,147 65,215 62,593 70,109 69,688 63,377

Medical Chests - 2,733 2,737 2,551 2,419 2,431

Following are selected graphs for Traditional Service activity trends over the last 6 years.

The number of primary evacuations has 
significantly increased over the last six years. 
As can be seen in the right hand graph much 
of this growth is due to increased activity 
in Western Operations where the number 
of primary evacuations has risen by nearly 
50% in the last three years. This increased 
emergency workload is due to the mining 
boom in Western Australia.

While the number of GP Clinics has 
remained fairly constant over the last six 
years, at around 3,000 clinics per annum, 
the number of patient contacts has 
marginally increased over the same period.

The number of nurse operated clinics has 
increased over the last six years, particularly 
in 2011/12. This reflects the RFDS’s increasing 
focus on primary health care over this period.

Our Traditional Services
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 Pilatus PC12,  Meekatharra WA.  
Photo courtesy of Simon Phelps



The Royal Flying Doctor Service was 
started 84 years ago, in 1928, by the 
Rev John Flynn. His tireless campaigning 
to alleviate the isolation and suffering 
of those who lived and worked in the 
Australian Outback led first to a regional, 
and then to a national aeromedical 
service. Flynn’s far-reaching ambition 
was to throw a ‘mantle of safety’ over 
the whole of Australia.

In 2012 we celebrate the continuing 
success of that ambition, as well as the 
technological advances in medicine, 
aviation and communications which 
allow the Royal Flying Doctor Service to 
offer the highest quality of care to all 
those who live, work and travel in the 
vast Australian Outback.

Flynn’s contribution to improving 
the lives of millions of Australians is 
acknowledged with a tribute to him and 
his work on the Australian $20 note.

For more information on the history 
of the RFDS, visit –  
www.flyingdoctor.org.au/About-Us/
Our-History/

Do not pray for tasks 
equal to your powers;  
pray for powers equal  
to your tasks.   
> Rev John Flynn.

RFDS National Office 
is grateful for the 
support of the following 
organisations during 
2011 – 2012

Our Supporters

Pantone 5403 C 

Pantone 5435 C 

Pantone 285 C



How you can help

Royal Flying Doctor Service of Australia 
National Office 
Level 8, 15-17 Young Street 
Sydney NSW 2000 
T 02 8259 8100 
F 02 9247 3351 
W www.flyingdoctor.org.au

As a not for profit organisation, 
we need your support…

Send a cheque (made payable to the 
Royal Flying Doctor Service of Australia) to:
RFDS National Office 
Level 8, 15-17 Young Street 
Sydney NSW 2000

Phone us on 02 8259 8100 or 1800 467 435
Visit our website www.flyingdoctor.org.au
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